
Health and Wellbeing Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer  

DATE: Tuesday, 16 November 2021 

 

TIME:  2.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014,’ the 

press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE ON THE RETURN TO FACE 

COUNCIL MEETINGS  

 

 (Pages 1 - 4) 

1   2.00pm - Welcome and Introductions.  
 

 

  

2   People's Story - PH Engagement and 

Inclusion.  
 

 

  

3   Apologies for Absence.  
 

 

  

4   Declarations of Interest.  
 

 

  

5   2.05pm - Minutes of the meeting held on 

Tuesday 14 September 2021 and Matters 
Arising.  
 

 

 (Pages 5 - 10) 

6   Locality Plan Update / Spotlight on Living 

Well  
 

 

  

6a 2.10pm - Verbal Update: Refresh of the Locality 
Plan (Muna Abdel Aziz)  

 

  

6b 2.15pm - Public Health Annual Report 2020/21 
and Core JSSNA (Muna Abdel Aziz)  

 

 (Pages 11 - 50) 

Public Document Pack



 

6c 2.25pm - Spotlight - Places Update on Climate 
Change (Mike Hemingway)  

 

  

6d 2.35pm - Making Salford a Living Wage City 
(Chris Dabbs)  

 

 (Pages 51 - 74) 

7   Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs 

Assessment Programme  
 

 

  

7a 2.45pm - Update on upcoming JSSNAs (Gordon 
Adams)  

 
• Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment  
 

• Wider determinants/MOSAIC 
 

• PCNs/Neighbourhood working 
 

  

8   Influencing role of the Salford Health and 

Wellbeing Board  
 

 

  

8a 2.50pm - Verbal Update: GM ICS arrangements 
and implications for HWBB (Steve Dixon/ Tom 

Tasker)  
 

  

9   2.55pm - Updates from subgroups (For 

information)  
 

 

  

9a Report from the Health Protection Board (Gillian 
McLauchlan)  

 

  

9b Report from the STAT Group (Alison Page/ May 

Moonan)  
 

  

9c Report from the LPG/JSNA Group (Muna Abdel 

Aziz/ Alison Page)  
 

  

10   Updates from partners, and emerging issues  
 

- Salford Safeguarding Adults Board 17th 

Annual Report for 2020/2021 
 

- Salford Safeguarding Children 
Partnership Annual Report 2020-21 

 

  

11   Any Other Business  
 

  

https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/media/1272/5877_ssab-annual-report-2020-21_v3.pdf
https://safeguardingadults.salford.gov.uk/media/1272/5877_ssab-annual-report-2020-21_v3.pdf
https://safeguardingchildren.salford.gov.uk/media/1612/salford-annual-report-2020-2021-publication-version.pdf
https://safeguardingchildren.salford.gov.uk/media/1612/salford-annual-report-2020-2021-publication-version.pdf


 

 
12   Date and Time of Next Meeting - Tuesday 11 

January 2022 at 2.00pm  
 

 

  

 
Contact Officer:   

Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services Officer E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



Last updated 05.10.21 

Return to face to face meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic 

Centre from 1st September 2021 
 
It is planned to return to face to face meetings in The Salford Suite in the Old Town 

Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.   
 

The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings 

and still comply with social distancing and Covid safe guidelines, as advised by 
Public Health.  
 

Everyone involved has worked hard to ensure that the transfer of face to face 
meetings to the Salford Suite will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your 

safety is our upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and 
effective decision making.  
 

This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we are 
all asked to adhere to ensure everyone is kept safe and the city council’s decision 

making remains legally compliant. 
 

1. General guidelines for meetings 
 

a. It should be possible to hold most of the decision making meetings back in the 
Salford Suite but it will not be possible to hold the meetings of the Council, 

Licensing and Safety Regulatory Panel (taxis) and Planning and 
Transportation Regulatory Panel, due to the number of people required to 

attend and so they will remain at 100 Embankment for the foreseeable future.  
There may also be times, when the date and times of meetings clash, that one 
may need to move to 100 Embankment. 

 

2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings  

It is very important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when 

attending meetings.   

a. Where to enter the building 
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.  

You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from 
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.   

 

 
Please note: If you are attending an evening meeting and you have difficulty entering via the 
main front door shown above, please use the intercom at the Main Reception (in the grey building 

behind the Old Town Hall Building shown above) to contact the security officer to gain access. 

Page 1

Agenda Annex



Last updated 05.10.21 

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings   

 Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so 

access to rooms and space is very limited.  Most of the building will remain 
closed and many contractors will be working on site. 

 Other members of the public are also using the building to access the 
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for 
them to do so safely, so there will be no access to the Registrars corridor 
and the ceremony room’s corridor. 

 

c. Toilets  

 The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.  

The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of 

the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite.   

 The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an 

officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so 

members can use it.  Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on 

the day.  
 

3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-secure manner  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

 A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the 

meeting and on the morning of the meeting.  You can order or collect a home 
testing kit by: 
- Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home  

- Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point  
 

 If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting 
under no circumstances should you attend.  If your lateral flow test is 

positive you will then need to book a complementary PCR Test and follow 

national guidance on self-isolating.  
 

 Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you 
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if 

they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a 
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions. 

  

 You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if 
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending 

face to face meetings.  
 

b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite 

 Please arrive at least 20 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space.  

 The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the 

principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are asked to regularly 
wash and sanitise your hands, wear a face covering unless you hold a 

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/rapid-testing-sites-in-salford/


Last updated 05.10.21 

medical exemption, and please maintain a social distance (1.5m) from others 
at all times whilst attending meetings.  

 You may remove your mask when you are seated but please wear your face 
covering when moving around the room or when on the corridor. 

 Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum 
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above. 
 

4. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

The guidance listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment. 

b. Travelling to 100 Embankment 

 There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can 

be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options. 

 It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations 

 The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100 
Embankment 

 There is secure cycle storage and showers on site. 
 

c. Parking at 100 Embankment 

 There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North) 
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in 

advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-
north/).  Cleminson Street remains the closest Salford City Council parking.  

 Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.  

Page 3

https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

SALFORD HEALTH AND WELLEBING BOARD 

 

Tuesday 14 September 2021, 2.15pm to 4.00pm 

 

Present 

 

Tom Tasker (TT)   Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

Muna Abdel Aziz (MAA)  Director of Public Health 

Alex Leach (AL)   Healthwatch Salford 

Councillor Damian Bailey (DBa) Executive Support Member for Social Care and Mental 

     Health 

Councillor Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for 

Housing, Property and Regeneration 

Steve Dixon (SD)   Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

Chris Dabbs (CD)   Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce 

 

Officers 

 

Gordon Adams (GA)  Strategic Intelligence Manager 

Claire Edwards (CE)  Democratic Services 

 

Officers present via MS Teams 

 

Cath Gormally (CG)   Salford Royal Foundation Trust 

Gillian Mclauchlan (GM)  Deputy Director of Public Health 

Tom Stannard (TS)   Chief Executive 

Tara Kearney (TK)   Salford Royal Foundation Trust 

Jessica Taati (JT)   Integrated Commissioning Manager 

Nicola Prescott (NP)  Strategy Manager Public Health 

Jenny Noble (JN)   Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

May Moonan (MM)   Public Health Consultant 

Samantha Mansfield (SM)  Public Health Strategic Manager 

Nicola Leak (NL)   Public Health Development Officer 

Jessica Edwards (JE)  Senior Intelligence Analyst 

 
Apologies 

 

Alison Page     Salford CVS 

Councillor John Merry Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for Adult Services, 

Health and Wellbeing 

Councillor Jim Cammell  Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s  

     Services 

Councillor John Walsh   LA Representative 

Margaret Rowe    University of Salford 

Charlotte Ramsden    Strategic Director for People 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



1. Welcome and Introductions 

 

TT welcomed members to the meeting and those present introduced themselves. 

 

2. People’s Story – ‘Day by Day’ Project  

 

CD gave a presentation with regard to the ‘Day by Day’ project – priorities of people with 

long-term health conditions, which included information regarding the following: 

 

 People  

 Approach 

 Your stories matter to us 

 Themes 

 Purpose and being valued 

 Quality relationships 

 Enjoyment 

 Being respected 

 Health 

 Understanding yourself 

 Recommendation: 

Use this intelligence about the priorities of people with long-term health 

conditions to: 

 inform wider future developments. 

 design, with people with long-term health conditions, approaches that 

support them to have the best possible quality of life. 

 Thanks for the support that had been received in respect of the project. 

 

RESOLVED: THAT the content of the presentation be noted and the above-mentioned 

recommendation be accepted. 

 
3. Apologies for Absence 

 

The above apologies were noted. 

 

4. Declarations of Interest 

 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 

5. Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 July 2021 and Matters Arising 

 

The minutes of the above meeting were approved as a correct record. 

 

There were no matters arising from the minutes. 

 

6. Locality Plan Update/ Spotlight on Strong and Resilient Communities. 

 

6a. Spotlight Presentation – Update on Ageing Well 

 

Page 6



SM and JT gave a presentation regarding Age Well which included information in relation 
to the following: 
 

 Covid Response 
 Covid Recovery 

 Age Well Commission 
 

Discussion took place which included reference to: 

 

 The eligibility criteria that had been applied with regard to Home Services (shopping 

and cleaning services). 

 There being a reluctance amongst older people to return to using public transport 

due to fewer passengers now wearing face masks.  

 The importance of flexibility with regard to the Age Well Commission in terms of 
meeting the needs of the community. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the presentation be noted. 

 

6b. Refresh of Priorities in the Locality Plan 

 
MAA provided a brief update regarding the refresh of priorities in the Locality Plan, 
referring to the importance of ensuring that the provision being offered was additional to 

the projects/activities that were taking place through other groups.  MAA indicated that 
over the next year, it would be necessary to agree the context in terms of the 

achievements that would be required by 2030 in the face of great challenge. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted. 

 
7. JSSNA Programme 

 

7a. Mental Health Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

 

NP and JE gave a presentation regarding the above matter which included information 
with regard to the following: 

 
 Mental Health JSNA for Salford: Spotlight on the impacts of Covid-19 

o Aims 

o Objectives – the why? 
o Scope 

o Salford’s population 
 Risk Factors for Mental Health 

o Deprivation & Poverty 

o Employment & Benefits 
o Childhood Trauma 

 Impact of Covid-19 and Emerging Inequalities 
o Social impacts: well-being 
o Financial position 

o Children and young people 
o Physical health 

 Prevalence of Mental Health Conditions 
o Depression 
o Serious mental illness 

Page 7



o Physical health checks 
 Accessing Mental Health Services 

o Children and young people Mental Health activity 

o Children and young people referrals to Mental Health Services 
o CAMHS referrals and diagnoses 

o Anxiety conditions in children and young people 
o Children and young people mental health service provision 
o Self-harm among children and young people 

o Inpatient stays: children and young people in CAMHS tier wards 
 Adults (18+) 

o IAPT referrals 
o IAPT treatment rates 
o Contact with Mental Health services 

o Mental Health service users in hospital 
o Ambulance calls 

o Self-harm hospital admissions 
o Mental health admissions 
o Suicide 

o Forecasting demand 
 

Discussion took place regarding the implications of the information that had been 
presented and the various ways in which the data would be utilised moving forward. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the content of the presentation be noted. 

 
7b. Progress update on the Cancer Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

 

NL presented a report which provided an update on progress regarding the Cancer JSNA.  
The report referred to cancer being a leading cause of death nationally and locally, 

responsible for 4 in 10 deaths (of people aged under 75 years) in Salford. This JSNA 
describes what is known about cancer in Salford to determine areas of need and develop 
recommendations for future action and service planning.  It examines the local risk factors 

for developing cancer, cancer epidemiology, cancer diagnosis, new cancer cases, 
treatment and deaths, and describes the current services that are in place and service 

user’s experiences. 
 
The report indicated that a first draft had recently been completed and was being shared 

with a wide audience (including CCG, SRFT and CVS) for feedback. Over the next few 
months, there would be further work for service user engagement section, examining their 

views on services that are working well across Salford, are well utilised, and the areas for 
improvement. An online/paper survey and one to one interviews may be used to collect the 
insight data. This could change following scoping engagement meetings. Some of the 

sections were being finalised to derive the cancer priorities, challenges and 
recommendations for Salford. 

 
Discussion took place which included reference to the following: 
 

 The important challenges that exist in terms of early detection and diagnosis. 
 The need for consideration to be given to how the uptake of screening services 

could be increased. 
 Take-up of the Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) vaccine being lower in Salford than 

the national target of 90% - it was indicated that work would be undertaken to 

Page 8



identify why some people were not taking up the vaccine with a view to 
recommendations being developed. 

 The important role played by health checks in terms of identifying cancer and other 

conditions. 
 The impact of people’s living conditions in terms of increasing their likelihood of 

developing cancer. 
 The Galleri Test, which checks for the earliest signs of cancer in the blood, and the 

NHS Galleri trial which would be taking place across England in the near future 

(Salford during November), involving the recruitment of volunteers to see how well 
the test works in the NHS. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the update report and discussion be noted. 
 
7c. Planned JSSNAs: Wider determinants/MOSAIC and PCNs/Neighbourhood 
Working 

 
GA provided an update regarding this matter.  Consideration was given to a report which 
set out current and forthcoming ‘deep dive’ projects incorporated within the Joint Strategic 

Strengths and Needs Assessment (JSSNA) programme, which comprises assessments of 
the current and future strengths, assets and needs of Salford and how they impact on their 

communities’ health and wellbeing, improve outcomes and reduce inequalities. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report be noted. 

 

8. Influencing role of the Salford Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

8a. Marmot City Ambition and the Great Eight 

 
MAA provided a brief update on future work that was planned in respect of the Marmot 
City Ambition and the Great Eight. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted. 

 

8b. GM ICS arrangements and implications for HWBB 

 
SD provided an update regarding arrangements for the GM ICS which would be operating 
from 1st April 2022.  It was noted that shadow arrangements were to be in place from 1st 

October 2021.  Discussion took place regarding implications for HWBB during which 
reference was made to the need for clarity in terms of the future remit of the board. 

 
Discussion took place regarding the strong relationships that exist with the VCSE sector in 
Salford and the importance of ensuring that the current working arrangements are 

maintained within the new structures.  Reference was made to the need for clarity in terms 
of future funding arrangements. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the update and comments be noted. 
 
9. Updates from Sub-Groups 

 

9a. Report from the Health Protection Board 

 

Page 9



GM provided a verbal update on the work currently being undertaken by the Health 
Protection Board. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted. 
 

9b. Report from the STAT Group  

 

MAA provided a verbal update on the work currently being undertaken by STAT Group. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted. 

 

9c. Report from the LPG/JSNA Group 

 
MAA provided a verbal update on the work currently being undertaken by the LPG/JSNA 
Group and gave assurance that the work of this group, the Health Protection Board and 

the STAT Group would be monitored with a view to ensuring that there was no duplication 
between the groups. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted. 
 
10. Updates from partners, and emerging issues 

 

There were no updates in respect of this matter. 

 

11.  Any Other Business 

 

There were no items of any other business. 

 

Page 10



1 
 

Draft Salford Public Health Annual Report 2020/21  

 

 

Preface 

Message from the Director of Public Health  

 

Public Health is everybody’s business 

I am often asked what is public health and what do you do as the Director of Public Health for 

Salford? We've all heard that prevention is better than cure and even sometimes that public health 
is everyone’s responsibility. So what does that really mean in practice?  

There are standard ways to think about public health. The Faculty of Public Health definition is ‘the 

science and art of promoting and protecting health and wellbeing, preventing ill -health and 
prolonging life with organised efforts of society’.  

In the same way there's a standard way to think about health where the World Health Organisation 

defines health as ‘a state of complete physical, mental, and social wellbeing and not merely the 

absence of disease or infirmity’.  

But when you really think about those definitions you realise that health and public health are in fact 

the ideal state to which we all aspire. This is why public health can mean different things to different 

people depending on who you are, your role in society and in work, and what you are trying to 

achieve.  

For me, public health is about our lives, our health and our future. That is why I feel it is much more 
helpful to think about why public health is needed and why we do the things that we do.  

Public health used to be part of the NHS when the public health role for health and care services was 

seen more visibly compared to the public health role in the places in which we live, the way in which 

we live our lives and the circumstances that affect us. So, when public health came back into 

councils in 2013, it was welcomed as public health returning back into local government where it 
first started before going into the NHS.  

You can see how different interpretations of why public health is needed are changing the profile of 

public health and where public health decisions are being taken. More recently the role of Public 

Health England at a national and regional level became more visible due to COVID-19 which resulted 

in the new UK Health Security Agency and The Office for Health Improvement and Disparities to 

replace Public Health England.  

The opportunities for public health in Greater Manchester and in Salford are also changing as the 

NHS reorganises into the new Greater Manchester Integrated Care System and as the Primary Care 

Networks in Salford take on the NHS leadership role for place and people. This is so very important 

for prevention and wellbeing services in each of the neighbourhoods to bring a closer connection for 

the NHS to the strengths and needs of the diverse communities living in Salford. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6b

http://www.salfordnow.co.uk/2021/08/18/public-health-is-everyones-responsibility-interview-director-of-public-health-for-salford-dr-muna-abdel-aziz/


2 
 

In this annual report we will give some examples of the different things that we do in public health, 

the role of the core public health team within the council , and also the wider role of all of the 

partners working in a public health way across the city. 

As you read the report, you may find yourself thinking about what public health means for you. For 

an individual, public health can mean how we look after ourselves and each other. In the report, you 

will find sources of further information to find out more, and some resources to support you in your 

own public health role and contribution.  

The report links to the resources to support us in our journey to wellbeing. I find the Five ways to 

Wellbeing are a helpful reminder of the things we can do to improve our own sense of wellbeing and 

that of the people around us, and even the whole community. Remember to Connect, Take notice, 

Give, Stay active, and Keep learning .  

COVID has reminded us of our collective responsibility that can override the individual rights and 

personal responsibilities. Because of the impact of the virus on other people, we must continue to 

do our bit to protect each other. Remember as we head into winter and into 2022, that our Hands, 

Face, Space, Ventilate and Vaccinate will make all the difference positively (or negatively) on the 

lives of the people of Salford. 

 

Dr Muna Abdel Aziz  

Director of Public Health for Salford 

November 2021 

 

  

Page 12

https://neweconomics.org/2020/03/five-ways-to-wellbeing-at-a-time-of-social-distancing
https://neweconomics.org/2020/03/five-ways-to-wellbeing-at-a-time-of-social-distancing
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/walk-in-vaccination-clinics-in-salford/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/walk-in-vaccination-clinics-in-salford/


3 
 

Background 

This annual report looks at challenges, opportunities, funding and spend for public health in Salford. 

It highlights health protection priorities, our response to the ongoing Covid pandemic, health 

improvement programmes, tackling inequalities and an update on progress towards the Locality Plan 

priorities. 

This report includes data up to and including the week ending 31 October 2021. 

 

Public Health in Salford 

The role of the Director of Public Health and the core Public Health team is to champion health and 

wellbeing, lead and influence work across partners to improve and prote ct health, to commission 

public health and preventative services, to set priorities and monitor progress towards reducing 

inequalities. This means that public health activity is undertaken by all teams of the council across 

children, adults and integrated commissioning with the CCG and through all the partnerships in the 
city. 

A good example of this is the statutory responsibility of the council for health protection . The team 

cover infection control and support GP practices, care homes, schools and nurseri es to improve 

standards. On behalf of the council, the Director of Public Health takes the lead for planning for, and 

responding to, emergencies that present a risk to public health (like COVID-19). The Spirit of Salford 
response to COVID-19 across the city has been phenomenal involving all partners. 

Salford shares the commitment alongside the other local authorities in Greater Manchester to 

become the first Marmot City Region by tackling the wider social determinants of health to reduce 

inequalities. Through the Health and Wellbeing Board, the Public Health team advises on and 

contributes to the development of Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and the Salford Locality Plan 

which is the joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Salford. The annual Director of Public Health 
Report is a vehicle for tracking progress and highlighting key priorities.  

Main public health challenges 

While the life expectancy gap within the city was closing, we are seeing stalling of these 

improvements and a widening gap away from the England average. The difference between 

different parts of the city is currently around 10 years for both females and males. 

COVID-19 has exposed some of the historical barriers that people face, and it has directly and 

indirectly affected people’s experiences of health inequalities. In 2021, out of 1,200 responses to the 

Big Health Reset conversation, 24% of respondents reported a disability and 27% had caring 

responsibilities. This directly affects their experiences of health and care generally and of COVID-19 
specifically. 

At the last review of health care spending in Salford, we are spending £1 in every £6 on mental 

health. The challenge will be to direct a large proportion of this spend on prevention especially 

following the impact of the pandemic directly and indirectly on people’s health and wellbeing .  

19% of adults in Salford smoke, equating to almost 40,000 people. This is the highest of any Greater 

Manchester locality. Cancer rates are going up year on year in Salford and nearly 4 in 10 cancers in 

Page 13



4 
 

Salford are potentially avoidable through changes in lifestyle behaviour. The earlier a cancer is 

diagnosed, and the patient receives treatment, the greater the chance of survival.  Smoking rates and 

premature deaths from preventable causes like cancer, respiratory and liver disease have not fallen 

as fast as we would have liked.  These point to high rates of unhealthy lifestyles that require a focus 

on smoke free spaces, offering support to quit successfully, and other lifestyles like tackling alcohol 

harm, treatment services and through licensing and minimum unit price. 

At the last measurement, almost 1 in 4 reception age children were overweight or obese in Salford 

(26.0%). By the time children reach year 6, this proportion increases to 38.9%, which is significantly 

higher than England. Despite improvement generally, Salford still has very low levels of physical 

activity within certain demographics of its adult population and one of the lowest physical activity 

levels for children in Greater Manchester. To address this, we are carrying out a review to tackle 

physical inactivity across the life course and among diverse groups to tackle inequalities, and a 

healthy weight review for children and adults. 

 

Opportunities 

The Health and Education domains on the deprivation indices in 2019 showed improvement from 

2015 and this shows potentially that we can turn the tide on health inequalities. The refreshed 

Salford Locality Plan will continue to drive this work to improve the health and quality of life of 
people in Salford.  

The plan provides details of the strategic approach to improving the health outcomes of residents in 

the city. It explains how providers of services – like the NHS, Salford City Council, Fire Service and 

Police will work closely together with the private and voluntary sector so services work better and 

cost less. Our ambition is to deliver better care and prevention in neighbourhoods, working with GPs 

in the primary care networks. 

The city of Salford has great assets in its green space according to the new ONS Health Index. The 

Salford Locality Plan includes a strong emphasis on the wider determinants and the assets in Salford 

as a place for promoting physical activity, mental wellbeing, culture and creativity. The plan 

recognises how people’s lives in Salford could change for the better if we have better housing, more 

jobs, more money and a nicer environment to live in. The locality plan outcomes include the 
following: 

Starting Well: 

• Children in Salford will have the best early start 

• Children and young people will develop well in Salford 

Living Well: 

• People will value being and feeling well in Salford 
• Carers in Salford will be supported to be and feel well 

Ageing Well: 

• People in Salford will live independent active older age 
• Salford offers best care for late life and dying well 

Place, Communities and Neighbourhoods: 

Page 14

https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/2416/0465/5601/Salford_Locality_Plan_2020.pdf


5 
 

• Salford places will promote health and wellbeing 
• Communities and neighbourhoods in Salford will promote health and wellbeing 

Enablers: 

• Partners in Salford will enable transformation 

• We will work together to deliver our locality plan 

 

Going forward, we will need to continue to protect health as we learn to live with COVID-19. At the 

same time we must retain strong focus on delivering the public health prevention programmes and 

work in partnership with our communities to tackle health inequalities. 

The core Public Health team in the council 

Public Health in Salford are responsible for helping people to stay healthy and avoid getting ill. The  

team are playing a key role in the response to COVID-19 and protecting health and wellbeing in 

Salford. The team includes medical doctors, nurses, clinicians and other healthcare professionals 

who offer health care and infection control advice to the public, partners and organisations in 

Salford. Public health analysts undertake the needs assessments and are tracking measures of 

health, wellbeing, and healthcare services.  

The Public Health team covers: 

 Monitoring health status and investigating health problems 
 Protecting health from the variety of infectious and non-infectious threats  
 Informing, educating and empowering people 
 Creating and supporting community partnerships, engagement and inclusion 
 Developing policies, plans and public health campaigns 
 Conducting evaluations and research to plan services that best suit the needs of our 

communities 
 Producing the public health annual reports, highlighting key challenges and progress in 

delivering the Locality Plan 

One of the main aims of Public Health is to reduce inequalities in health within Salford, and also 

compared to other parts of the country. Public Health work with local organisations and 

communities to improve people's health and wellbeing and to avoid or reduce the risk of illness. The 

team are working with communities and voluntary sector colleagues to raise the profile and uptake 

of the public health prevention programmes, and to address historical barriers and inequalities. This 

helps to reach varied and diverse groups of people across the city.  

 

  

Page 15



6 
 

Public health budget and spend in Salford 

The public health allocation for Salford is retained by the Greater Manchester local authorities as 

part of a business rate retention pilot. The notional allocation for public health in Salford for 2020/21 

was £21,592,402 which was the first time in several years for there to be an uplift. This year, the 

public health grant for Salford is £21,983,815. 

The purpose of the public health grant is to provide local authorities in England with the funding 

required to discharge their public health functions as specified in Section 73B(2) of the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (‘the 2006 Act’).  

The grant pays for core public health services and also provides leverage for other investments that 

improve the public's health.  The local authority must, in using the grant, have regard to the need to 
reduce inequalities, and to provide value for money. 

Services to which the grant contributes should have a significant effect on public health; or have a 

significant effect on or in connection with the exercise of the functions. The allocation must be used 

only for meeting eligible expenditure incurred or to be incurred by local authorities for the purposes 
of their public health functions. 

Due to austerity, there has been a year-on-year reduction in the public health grant between 2014 

and 2019. This is equivalent to 10p in every £1 no longer being allocated to Salford from the time 

that public health left the NHS and at a time of increasing demand and population growth.  

In addition, further savings to support key prevention services in Salford in those five years are 

equivalent to a further reduction in core public health services of 17p in every £1 that is coming into 

Salford no longer spent on the core public health activities that had been in place in the NHS. 

Contracts were renegotiated to deliver efficiencies as integrated services, and some contracts were 
reduced in value or ceased. 

In 2020/21, there was an uplift in the grant of £1,381,492 announced during COVID which was the 

first time in many years, and additional one-off COVID funding was received to contain the virus. 

Public health funding allocations whether recurrent or one-off have been outstripped by the level of 

demand and need from austerity before COVID. One-off grants for weight management, mental 

health and sexual health have been received this year and several bidding opportunities have been 
announced. These clearly highlight the precarious nature of prevention funding. 

The challenge remains for Salford to sustain prevention activities and there is now over-reliance on 

the one-off non-recurrent COVID funds, bidding for national grants that previously were directly 
allocated, and further savings required in future years.  

Similar to the public health budget, spend on integrated health and social care and on the wider 

council services can be viewed from a prevention and demand management perspective. A 

substantial proportion of illnesses requiring medical treatment, drugs, or admission to hospital are 

preventable, and many conditions are exacerbated by poor housing, poverty and/or other life 

stresses. The role of businesses and the impact of jobs and the economy on health has long been 

recognised and has been brought into sharp profile by the pandemic.  

Page 16



7 
 

How the £21.98 million Public Health Grant is allocated for 2021/22  

Note: This does not include one-off COVID funding allocated to Salford, out of which £1.33 million was spent in 2020/21 on activities to contain the virus. 

Core Public Health Service, Council
10%

Core PH programmes (various)

4%

Substance Misuse Services, NHS 
17%

Sexual Health and HIV Services, NHS
13%Primary Care and Prevention projects, NHS

3%

0-19 Children's Services, NHS
25%

Early Years Service, Council
6%

Investment in Youth Service, Council

2%

Welfare Rights and Salford Assist, Council
4%

Health Improvement Service, Council
7% Salford Community Leisure 

5%

Regulatory Services, Council
4%

P
age 17



8 
 

Public health and Prevention activities in 2021/22 

Priority 
theme 

High-level topic area 

St
ar

t 
W

e
ll

 0-19 Services 

Emotional health and wellbeing 

Risky behaviours 

Healthy weight (all ages) 

Oral health 

Li
ve

 W
e

ll
 

Physical activity 

Tobacco control 

Substance misuse 

Sexual health   

Workplace health 

Cancer prevention, CVD and other long-term conditions 

Social prescribing 

A
ge

 W
e

ll
 Healthy ageing 

Falls protection 

Winter Warm  

Flu protection 

Dementia  

H
e

al
th

 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t Health checks 

Workplace health 

Welfare support and Spirit of Salford  

Mental wellbeing and suicide prevention 

Connect5, mental health first aid, and other public health training 

Offender health 

P
ro

te
ct

in
g 

H
e

al
th

 Health Protection Board 

Infection control 

Flu and COVID secure 

Screening and immunisation 

Public Health emergency preparedness and response 

Health in planning /licensing 

Health in business 

K
n

o
w

le
d

ge
 a

n
d

 
In

te
ll

ig
e

n
ce

 Core JSSNA and health profiles 

Research and intelligence development 

Bids and evaluations 

Monitoring public health programmes 

Effective dissemination and data sharing 

Public health governance and workforce development 

O
u

r 
Sa

lf
o

rd
 

Neighbourhood/PCNs places and partners 

Developing resilient communities – co-production 

Tackling inequalities (the missing 20%) 

Supporting the VCSE sector 

Active Learning City 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 Partners in Salford focus on mental health and wellbeing  

 
Page 18



9 
 

Health Protection priorities 

Responding to the Coronavirus 

Throughout 2020 and 2021, we have faced one of the largest public health emergencies of our time.  The public health 

team has been at the forefront of the health protection response, working with other council directorates and local 

partners. Some of this work includes: 

• Salford Test and Trace  

• Local outbreak management 

• Tracking the virus, data and intelligence  

• Public health engagement 

• Risk assessments 

• COVID risk health checks 

• Support to the vaccination programme  

The Spirit of Salford response across the city has been phenomenal involving all partners and the efforts of the people 
of Salford. 

Wider health protection issues 

 The Covid-19 pandemic became the priority work area for Health Protection in 2020/21. Business continuity plans 
were put in place which meant the usual focus on wider public health protection was reduced. The rates of health 
care associated infections have continued to be monitored, and the Health Protection Board is now alternating 
focus on COVID and non-COVID issues. 

 Childhood immunisation uptake rates have fallen year on year since 2012 across most cohorts, and the HPV 

vaccination uptake amongst girls has continued to decline.  This is an area of focus for next year to increase 

uptake. The recurrent drop in uptake year on year is of concern, increasing the risk of serious childhood 

illnesses.  We have seen the impact of low vaccination rates in one of our communities in recent years where 
we had a measles outbreak affecting a significant number. 

 Uptake of the flu vaccine last year among pregnant women and in primary schools was not as high as required; 
the latter being due to disruption of the school health programme as a result of COVID and closures. Increasing 
uptake of the flu vaccine in these groups will protect everyone, especially the nasal spray for young children who 
may be ‘super spreaders’ for older and clinically vulnerable people and for pregnant women. 

 There was high uptake of the flu vaccination in winter 2020 amongst NHS and care home staff.  12 homes 
improved uptake significantly to meet the target of 75% or above. This seemed to be the care homes that actively 
promoted the vaccine and facilitated in-house vaccinations via pharmacists. Work is underway to promote uptake 
further in winter 2021. 

 In 2020/21, there were 69 cases of C. difficile infection, and almost all patients had an underlying health condition 
with antimicrobial use in the preceding three months. This year the pandemic has likely had an impact on the 
number requiring antimicrobials due to opportunistic secondary infections in those who have had severe COVID-
19.  It is also clear that individuals with a compromised immune system, such as those aged 65 and over, are most 

at risk of C. difficile infection.  

 Gram-Negative bloodstream infections need to be reduced by 25% by 21/22 and 50% by the year 2024. Our data 
(as well as national data) shows the highest proportion of these infections are caused by the bacteria E. coli. 
Infection originating from the urinary tract is responsible for a large proportion of the cases of E. coli in Salford, 
the majority of the cases being diagnosed in A&E or needing admission. Work is planned next year to reduce the 
incidence of urinary tract infection in older people living in the community which will reduce the numbers of 
infections entering the bloodstream. 

Page 19



10 
 

 

COVID-19 risk health checks  

A ‘COVID secure’ version of the NHS Health Check was offered to frontline workers and volunteers who are deemed most 

at risk of dying from COVID-19. These health checks have no exclusion criteria related to age or health status and were 
delivered by the Health Improvement Service.  

This COVID Risk Health Check aims to reduce frontline workers and volunteers’ risk of the more serious complications of 
COVID-19 by : 

 Signposting on for clinical intervention where necessary (e.g. for a hypertensive BP reading)  

 Advising and offering support to lead a healthier lifestyle (e.g. stopping smoking, increasing physical activity, support 
to lose weight) with a strong holistic virtual wellbeing offer utilising digital solutions – e.g. ‘Health Improvement 
Connect’ 

 As well as having the usual cardiovascular risk assessment (QRisk3), patients also have an additional COVID Risk 
Assessment as devised by the Public Health team. Those who are found to be at higher risk of complications from the 
virus are given a letter to give to their employer to advise them of this and ensure they as the employee are being 
supported to stay COVID-secure with reasonable adjustments whilst in work. 

 
As of October 2021, more than 1000 COVID risk health checks have been undertaken. 

 

 

Tobacco Control 

The most effective way to quit smoking is through a combination of behavioral support and stop smoking aids such as 
nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) or Varenicline (Champix).  

When the COVID-19 pandemic hit and England went into a national lockdown, smoking cessation services had to quickly 

adapt from face to face services to phone and online support and find a way for people to receive treatments that help 

them to sustain their quit.  

A digital solution was implemented and stop smoking advisors could then send requests for NRT to a pharmacy of the 

patient’s choice, usually local to their home or work. NRT is free for 12 weeks for anyone who lives or works in Salford, 
or has a Salford GP. 

In 2020/21, we saw a significant rise in the number of people making quit attempts. This is likely due to the respiratory 

nature of COVID-19, as well as the launch of the CURE tobacco addiction programme at SRFT alongside the ease of access 

to community stop smoking services. During 2020/21, 416 people successfully achieved a 4-week quit, from 1,148 
attempts. This equates to a quit rate of 36%, an increase on the previous year.  

 

 

  

Page 20

https://www.salford.gov.uk/health-improvement-service
https://www.salford.gov.uk/health-improvement-service


11 
 

Tracking the pandemic in Salford 

  

 

Cases  

By 31 October 2021, Salford has seen 45,881 cases of coronavirus over four distinct waves. Testing was very limited 

during the first wave beginning in March 2020, with a peak of 36 identified cases in one day greatly underestimating the 

true extent of infections in the city. The second wave began in early September and initially saw a high number of cases 

among younger adults, particularly university students, before rising in other age groups. This second wave didn’t end 

before the third began, driven by the Alpha variant (also known as lineage B.1.1.7), in early December 2020. The 

lockdown at the start of 2021 reversed the rising trend in case numbers but they fell more slowly than they had risen. 

The most recent fourth wave was also driven by a new more infectious variant, the Delta variant (B.1.617.2). This latest 

wave started in mid-May and peaked above all previous waves with a daily average case count of 269 in the week 

ending 19 July 2021. Since this latest peak Salford has averaged over 100 new cases per day.   

Page 21



12 
 

  

Variants 

All viruses mutate and the SARS-CoV-2 virus that causes COVID-19 is no different. Many mutations are minor but others 

are significant enough to change the transmissibility of the virus or severity of illness. A proportion of swabs from 

positive PCR tests are further processed and the genetic profile of the virus identified. The two most recent waves were 

driven by variants with increased transmissibility. Firstly the Alpha variant, calculated to be around 50% more 

transmissible, quickly became dominant in the South East before spreading across the country throughout December. 

In Salford the proportion of sequenced tests identified as the Alpha variant increased from zero in the second week of 
December to over 90% by the middle of February. 

This lasted until May, when the Delta variant, already established in Bolton, spread throughout Salford and many other 

parts of the region. Since 1 June 2021 the Delta variant has accounted for 98.7% of sequenced samples in Salford. 
Compared to the Alpha variant, Delta has been calculated to be around 50% more transmissible.  

  

Page 22



13 
 

Testing  

As of 31 October 2021, a total of 1,261,686 tests for the coronavirus have been undertaken by Salford residents. Just 

over 95% have produced a negative or void result with 57,118 positive tests for 45,881 individuals.  

 

 

Care homes 

Most of Salford care homes experienced at least one outbreak of COVID-19 since March 2020 and they have worked 
hard to keep residents and staff as safe as possible. Care home testing has become a vital  part of outbreak prevention in 
order to protect our most vulnerable residents. Every week around 2,500 tests are conducted across all care homes in 
the city, including staff and residents. Covid vaccination rates are high amongst care home residents and s taff. 

  

Page 23



14 
 

Vaccinations 

By 31 October 2021, almost three-quarters (74%) of Salford adults had received a first dose of the coronavirus vaccine. 

Just over two-thirds (67%) of adult residents (158,000 adults) were fully vaccinated with two doses. With the addition of 

children into the eligible population, by 31 October, over 70% of all eligible age groups were covered with one dose, 

and 62% with two doses. The booster rollout covered all residents in care homes and frontline health and social care 

staff ahead of winter, while the offer remains open to everyone who has not had their first or second doses to catch up 
with their vaccination. The vaccines are safe and effective. 

 

  

Page 24



15 
 

Hospitalisations 

Salford Royal hospital has been at the forefront of the local response to the most seriou s consequences of COVID-19. 

Patients from Salford and beyond have been treated throughout the pandemic. In the first wave patient numbers 

peaked at 136 in mid-April 2020 before falling back to single figures by late August. The second wave lasted much 

longer with more than 100 beds occupied by COVID patients in Salford Royal every day for over 4 months between 

November 2020 and March 2021. The most recent wave has seen numbers climbing to over 50 patients by late October 
2021 but vaccinations and improved treatments have prevented a much worse situation. 

 

 

https://www.gmtableau.nhs.uk/#/site/GMHSCPPublic/views/COVIDHospitalAdmissions/Demographics?:iid=6  
Page 25

https://www.gmtableau.nhs.uk/#/site/GMHSCPPublic/views/COVIDHospitalAdmissions/Demographics?:iid=6


16 
 

Deaths 

At the time of writing in November 2021, 718 Salford residents have died with COVID-19 recorded as a contributing 

cause of death. There have been two distinct waves in terms of mortality related to COVID-19. 

The second wave of deaths involving COVID-19 lasted longer than the first and, whilst the peak was much lower, 

ultimately resulted in more deaths. The second wave began in September 2020 and peaked in November of that year 

with 25 deaths in one week. By the end of February 2021, the weekly number of deaths had fallen to 3 and has not 

risen above five in any week since. Over the course of the second wave of deaths, 314 Salford residents died with 
COVID-19 recorded as a contributory factor on their death certificate. This compares with 307 during the first wave.  

The other main difference between the waves is in the place of death. Prior to September 2020 four out of every ten 
deaths involving COVID-19 occurred in a care home. Since September 2020 that figure has been one in ten deaths.  

 

Have there been more deaths than usual? 

To understand the additional burden of the pandemic on the level of mortality , we compare the number of deaths seen 

each week with the average for the five years prior to 2020. The two waves of deaths involving COVID-19 both showed 

high weekly number of deaths above the expected level or ‘excess mortality’. Either side of these waves, deaths have 

been below the expected level. The number of excess deaths from the start of 2020 to October 2021 has been 345 

deaths higher than the average for the previous five years - this figure may increase as not all deaths will have been 
registered yet. 

Page 26



17 
 

 

 

Inequalities 

Number of deaths due to COVID-19 by local area at Middle Super Output Area level 

March 2020 to April 2021

 

First wave March – Aug 2020

 
Second wave Sep 2020 -April  2021

 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/causesofdeath/articles/deathsduetoco
vid19interactivemap/2021-02-25 

  

Page 27

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/causesofdeath/articles/deathsduetocovid19interactivemap/2021-02-25
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/causesofdeath/articles/deathsduetocovid19interactivemap/2021-02-25


18 
 

Health Improvement programmes 

Health Improvement activities 

Health Improvement activities aim to promote independence and maximise life chances: 

'To improve the life chances of Salford citizens and to promote the independence of individuals and communities in 
Salford through choice and control.' 

From March 2020, the Health Improvement Service (HIS) has provided a flexible offer to keep people engaged and safe 

during the COVID pandemic. This has included telephone appointments instead of face -to-face appointments, as well as 

flexible communication with patients including keeping in contact via text message, email and social media. A Stop 

Smoking Facebook support page (www.facebook.com/groups/salfordstopsmoking) has been created to allow patients 

who wish to stop smoking to receive peer support which they would usually receive in the stop smoking group drop-ins 
at Swinton Gateway. 

In 2020/21, 1,589 individuals have been supported in structured/case managed HIS programmes delivered virtually.  271 

people took part in structured, case managed physical activity interventions, with 68% improving their physical activity 

levels by at least one category on the scale (e.g. from ‘inactive’ to ‘moderately active’). 440 clients have completed a 
wellbeing assessment with 38% showing an improvement in their wellbeing measurement. 

As of April 2021, the service has supported 1,092 people to stop smoking with 416 quits achieved out of target set at the 

start of the year to support at least 350 people to quit.  This currently represents a 38% quit rate, and this is expected to 

improve as clients are continuing to stay quit.   

The service has replaced the NHS Health Check with the COVID-Risk Health Checks which has been opened out to 

everyone who lives or works in Salford. The NHS Health Check is restricted to people by age and who do not have a pre-

existing health condition. 950 COVID-Risk health checks have been undertaken especially for people with a health 

condition or other risk factors that puts them at higher risk of COVID. We are continuing to  promote the health checks 
for any frontline staff or vulnerable residents. 

Work to support the COVID effort continues especially supporting rapid testing in testing centres and in schools, 

community engagement to promote the key messages and bring back insights to the health protection team, and to 

support the pop-up clinics promoting the uptake of vaccinations in communities that may be hesitant or not realise the 

vaccine is for them.  

As well as administering the COVID grants and isolation support, Salford has received £1.314 million to provide holiday 

activities and food for children eligible for free school meals under the Holiday Food and Activity Programme grant.   

 

There is also support for people still suffering the symptoms of long COVID to provide pre -clinic patient assessments, as 

well as wellbeing support within the multi-disciplinary clinic team. While the numbers are low, we are still developing 

our understanding of the longer-term impacts of COVID. There is very limited data available – GM records report just 

536 patients in Salford by the end of October 2021. 

The Five Ways to Wellbeing have taken on more significance during the coronavirus pandemic as people continued to 
relate to each other and look after themselves and each other. 

Five Ways to Wellbeing at a time of social distancing | New Economics Foundation 

  

Page 28

https://neweconomics.org/2020/03/five-ways-to-wellbeing-at-a-time-of-social-distancing


19 
 

  

Page 29



20 
 

Why the Locality Plan Priorities Matter 

 

 

 

  

Page 30



21 
 

* Starting Well 

To minimise the impact on education, the health protection team have been working with early years, schools and 
colleges on a case by case basis to support the arrangements in schools to isolate the virus, prevent and respond to 
outbreaks. Schools have a gradual escalation of response depending on the number of cases and evidence of 
transmission within or across year groups. 
 
There has been considerable progress made since the implementation and launch of Salford's 'Thrive in Education' (TiE) 
mental health support team in October 2020 and the team has now extended their reach and offered to support 53 
schools (including 2 PRUs) from September 2021. The offer includes a bespoke package for each school and could 
include delivery of 1-2-1 and group work interventions, consultation and advice, training and staff development and 
support with Salford’s 'team around the school' and whole school approaches.  
 

 
 

Salford have committed to continue our coproduction approach in the Salford Poverty Truth 

Commission. Through the Early Years Steering Group, work is underway to support families and 

taking a whole system approach to address childhood obesity. 
 

Page 31



22 
 

 

 

  

Page 32



23 
 

* Living Well 

Salford CVS, working with Salford Third Sector Consortium, has led a significant transformational programme of work 
under the heading of ‘Wellbeing Matters’. This programme commenced in 2017 and is now firmly embedded, working 
at scale across the city and within the 5 health neighbourhoods, commissioned by and working closely with all of the 
Primary Care Networks, alongside the CCG and other health partners.  
 
The programme has two key work streams – social prescribing, and capacity- building volunteering and voluntary action 
- and takes a social value and person- and community-centred approach to supporting local people and communities. 
Many services are measuring their impact on health and wellbeing through indicators such as the WEMWBS scale, 
Outcome Stars and lifestyle indicators. As of September 2021, Salford is on track to increase access to integrated 
evidence-based psychological therapies for 25% of all people with anxiety and depression each year. Wellbeing Matters 
is a key referral pathway for primary care in terms of connecting patients to social and community support. Recent 
developments include a new Green Care scheme.  
 

 

 
Page 33



24 
 

* Ageing Well 

Much of the Age-Friendly Salford work is led by local charities Inspiring Communities Together and Age UK Salford, 

working in partnership with Salford CVS.  Partners have maintained a strong service offer throughout the COVID-19 

pandemic, upskilling older people digitally and offering daily online activities. From April 2020 to March 2021, the 

programme had 1,400 digital engagements, 190 older people completed the Tech and Tea programme which had to 

be reshaped due to the pandemic (in the 5 previous years over 500 people per year completed the programme), 500 

craft packs were delivered to care homes and individuals, while volunteers contributed over 700 hours of their time.  

 

 

 

 

Page 34



25 
 

A new service model is being commissioned to deliver an integrated preventative Age Well service offer in 2022. 

below are just two examples of initiatives that took place during COVID in the last year. 

 

Aspire Community Interest Company – My Life * My Support * My Way 

Aspire is a large health and social care organisation providing person centred care and support to many of Salford’s 

most vulnerable people, in particular people living with complex learning disabilities, autism and dementia.   We care 

for the needs of the whole person and often that includes being a critical friend to family members and carers as they 

navigate their loved one’s journey.   

During COVID we were unable to see people at our Poppy Dementia Day Care Centre, we had to change our approach 

and started to visit people in their own homes paying particular attention to keeping our staff and people supported 
safe. 

Initially we visited Edna twice a week in person and at other times over zoom, but soon realised her husband Keith was 

struggling with his own health, so we increased our visits to daily to provide personal care, shopping, cooking and 

stimulating activities.  Keith was not our client, but we knew that without our help both their circumstances would 
deteriorate. Afterwards he wanted to tell us how our response helped him get through the difficult period of isolation.  

Keith said “Firstly, we feel that the outstanding service provided by Aspire via the Poppy Day Centre, specifically to their 

clients and associated carers, prior to the lockdown in March 2020 should be acknowledged. We find the support, 

guidance, advice etc. that we and our loved ones receive is second to none. The staff at Poppy are dedicated, caring, 
approachable and dutiful – indeed they are a credit to Aspire.  

Aspire’ stepped up’ in two specific ways: 1) by organising zoom sessions (such as music therapy) events (raffles, 

Valentine’s Ball), issuing hampers etc. and 2) by supporting carers and their loved ones in the home. It cannot be 

overstated how vital the support offered to us both was in helping us to get through this very difficult time. 

Edna is now back at Poppy Day care and Keith is well.   

 

Falls Prevention during the pandemic 

During the pandemic, all face to face activity was put on hold.  Following the development of a programme of online 

activities, falls prevention activity has focused on low level home activity as part of a virtual session delivered by Salfor d 

Community Leisure, GM Sport and informally via the Age Friendly Salford development workers.  As restrictions have 

eased, walk and talk activity has taken place across public green spaces in Salford; with the following benefits: 

Physical wellbeing –  

 increased stamina and mobility, with decreased likelihood of future falls  

 started walking on another day of the week with a friend from the group 

 started to get off the bus a stop or two earlier so could walk home from the shops through the park   
 “Since joining walk and talk I have gone down 2 notches in my belt, and it is all down to me being part of these 

brilliant walks” 
 
Feeling safe -   

 using the places we had walked as they knew how to get there and that they were safe and fit for purpose  
 
Mental wellbeing –  

 increased wellbeing due to activities such as singing, dancing, learning about local history and sharin g local 
knowledge 

 being with others and sharing positive conversations and outside spaces made you start appreciating what you had  

 “I honestly cannot believe I walked 2.5 miles just chatting” 

Page 35



26 
 

* Our Salford assets 

State of the VCSE sector  

Salford has a strong and vibrant VCSE sector. In 2020 there were an estimated 1,665 VCSE organisations in Salford, the 

vast majority of which were working to improve people’s wellbeing, health and care. 87% were small, with an annual 

income of £100,000 or less. 17% self-identified as being a social enterprise. 84% had at least one source of non-public 

sector funding, demonstrating that they bring additional resources into the Salford economy. In fact, for every £1 of 

public sector money invested into the VCSE sector in Salford, it brought in an additional £7 investment into Salford. 

However, the sector manages largely on non-recurrent income, and during 2020 approx. 53% of organisations had 
needed to use their reserves to support their running costs.  

The Salford State of the VCSE Sector 2020 survey (Salford CVS / University of Salford, 2021) highlighted that we have 

seen a significant increase in volunteering since 2017 (although probably a temporary increase directly in response to 

Covid-19). The 2020 survey approximated that there were 61,828 volunteers in Salford; giving a total of 210,299 hours 

each week, worth £104 million to the Salford economy (based on the real Living Wage rate of £9.50 per hour). Salford’s 

VCSE sector is supported by Salford CVS, the local VCSE infrastructure support organisation (est. 1919), whose role as a 

sector leader has been crucial in the development of strong and productive relationships between the VCSE and public 

sectors in Salford and Greater Manchester. Salford VCSE Strategy and action plan includes plans to increase investment 

in the VCSE sector as part of the city’s new Inclusive Economy Strategy action plan , and the proposed ‘Social Capital 

Account’ for Salford to track growth, deployment and return on investment. 

Neighbourhood working 

Neighbourhood working is crucially important to addressing our wellbeing, health and care challenges in Salford. With 

the development of the 5 health neighbourhood forums (cross-sectoral, including VCSE reps) alongside the growth of 

the 5 Primary Care Networks, we have a real opportunity to take a strengths-based, person-and-community centred 

approach to improving the health and wider wellbeing of Salford residents. We are fortunate to have a citywide Health 

Improvement Service alongside our VCSE-led Wellbeing Matters programme operating in all neighbourhoods. This 

positions Salford well in terms of being able to respond to the requirements of the emerging GM ICS structures as a 
result of changes to the NHS in Greater Manchester.   

Physical activity 

Providing opportunities for people of all ages, abilities and backgrounds to be physically active, contributing to their 

physical and mental wellbeing, has never been more important. The latest Active Lives results published by Sport 

England (November 2019-Nov 2020) shows the effect of the pandemic on physical activity levels in Salford. While 70.2% 

of adults in Salford are active for at least 30 minutes a week, we estimate that 10,600 fewer people are active 

compared to 12 months ago. This sets the context for the physical activity strategy for Salford that is currently being 

developed. 

Green and Blue space 

RHS Garden Bridgewater is a real cultural and green space asset, which offers an extensive community 
programme (including free entry for Salford residents on Tuesdays). The first phase of the new garden opened in 

May 2021 which included a social prescribing project. Salford does have a comprehensive network of VCSE 
groups and organisations in this space – from Friends of Parks to community growing projects. Salford CVS is 

currently mapping our green and blue destinations as part of its Green Care programme of work.  

 
Sense of Place 

The strategy for Culture, Creativity and Place is now in place. Known as Suprema Lex, the strategy has  the support of a 

cross-sectoral group, managed by the Head of Salford Culture and Place Partnership.  

Page 36



27 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 37



28 
 

* Partners in Salford tackling inequalities  

Salford: A Marmot city 

On 30 June 2021, Sir Michael Marmot published a new report on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in Greater 

Manchester. ‘Build Back Fairer in Greater Manchester’ was commissioned by the Greater Manchester Health and Social 

Care Partnership and highlights the alarming impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the city region, with some of our 
poorest communities suffering disproportionately during the pandemic.  

The report argues that government should reverse funding cuts of the last decade to provide Greater Manchester with 

the resources to implement ambitious recommendations for action across the social determinants of health to build 

back fairer, following the pandemic.  

Both reports strongly align with Salford’s approach to improving health and equality outcomes in the city, our shared 
commitment to tackling health and economic inequalities locally and the Great Eight priorities in Salford: 

 Improving health prevention to tackle health inequalities and calls to significantly increase spending for 
prevention in the total health care budget 

 Providing further support for early years settings in more deprived areas and extending interventions to 
support young people’s mental health and wellbeing 

 Improving skills, educational attainment and lifelong opportunities such as through the Learning City 
initiative   

 Delivering decent jobs, with decent pay through our work with the Real Living Wage Action Group and 
adoption of the City Mayor’s Employment Standards Charter  

 Delivering a more inclusive and green local economy including driving forward improvements in social value 
standards, developing local supply chains, recruiting locally and extending the role of business and anchor 
institutions 

 Reducing poverty through income maximisation and financial inclusion 

 Improving the quality and affordability of housing such as through Derive  
 Investment in green infrastructure, active travel and reducing air pollution 

 

In September 2021, the Health and Wellbeing Board strongly endorsed the Marmot City approach for Salford and the 

strategic direction set out for the city in The Salford Way and Salford’s Locality Plan. Across the city, we will pursue 

further opportunities for good work (including opportunities for those further away from the job market), fair 

remuneration and the real Living Wage, using our status as the first city in England to be working towards becoming an 

accredited Living Wage place to drive our ambitions. 

 

Page 38



29 
 

The Salford Way 

Salford partners have committed to work together to tackle the wider determinants of health via an ambitious 

programme of work known as The Salford Way. This includes the City Mayor’s refreshed Great Eight priorities (2021), 

the city’s refreshed Tackling Poverty and Inequality Strategy – No One Left Behind (2021) and the new Inclusive 

Economy Strategy – Closing the Divide (2021).  In line with the recommendations of the GM Independent Inequalities 

Commission, our Work and Skills Strategy, and our Housing Strategy, and the Salford elements of the GM Local 

Industrial Strategy are mutually reinforcing, and together form a comprehensive set of actions to underpin improved 
health and wellbeing of people in the city.  

A recent Internal Audit review for tackling health inequalities in Salford City Council emphasised the ‘Golden Thread’ in 

all that we do and recommended strengthening the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments to track progress (JSNA). Routine 

monitoring of the high-level indicators referenced within the Locality Plan already does take place. To demonstrate this 
Golden Thread, the core JSNA indicators are kept under constant review and refreshed each time there are new data. 

 

 
Page 39

https://public.tableau.com/profile/phsc.salford#!/vizhome/LPDashboardv2/Front


30 
 

The asset based JSSNA approach (Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs Assessment) 

Traditionally the JSNA process focused on needs and service responses. This inadvertently led to a ‘cup half empty’ 

approach to each of the complex issues examined as part of the JSNA. By starting with a strengths and asset approach, 

the new JSSNA process in Salford will include qualitative views on the strengths and assets in each of the 

neighbourhoods and in each of the topics examined. A number of evaluations, service reviews and case studies are 

compiled each year that will be relevant to the JSSNA looking forward to the future. This year, the ward profiles were 

refreshed. Next year, further in-depth analysis will be undertaken for the neighbourhoods and PCNs, and for the wider 
determinants. 

Positive action based on assets can bring together diverse communities to work together towards shared goals. Already 

there is a wealth of insights across all stakeholders and member organisations of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

including the voluntary sector, public sector bodies, chamber of commerce, Healthwatch and the bespoke groups 

supporting the JSSNA process like the Salford Lived Experience Panel and the co-production priorities of the Locality 

Plan.  

The Salford Lived Experience panel were set up in 2021 from a group of six lay members trained in the quality 

improvement approach. They will be working closely with the public health team and Healthwatch on the JSSNA 

process. Local residents are also being recruited to help examine the priorities in the locality plan aiming to co -produce 
new and different solutions. 

The 2011 Census will refresh the baseline of what we know about the diverse communities in Salford. There are also 

routine data sets that will be useful for monitoring changes within communities and during the year for the changing 
face of Salford. These will be a new source of segmented data for the JSSNA. 

While the ONS Health Index compares Salford to other areas in the country, there are other more up to date detailed 

data that can give insights into communities living within Salford. Examples include Mosaic and the Co-op Community 

Wellbeing Index which will be used in the refresh of the JSSNA on wider determinants in Salford and at 
neighbourhood/ward levels that will help develop the new working relationships with the Primary Care Networks. 

The Co-op Community Wellbeing Index (CWI) is a free-to-use online tool that provides insight into the wellbeing of over 

28,000 communities across the UK. The Index is updated annually and was developed in collaboration with the Young 

Foundation and Geolytix. It is the first measure of wellbeing at a local level across England, Scotland, Northern Ireland 

and Wales. The data within the CWI provides users with the ability to learn more about the health of communities at a 

hyper-local level, whilst offering the insight required to empower action on the issues that are most  critical to help drive 

development. 

 

Page 40

https://www.salford.gov.uk/salfordjsna
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-local-community/ward-profiles/


31 
 

Mosaic Public Sector is a classification of UK residents from Experian that is designed specifically for use by the public 

sector and focuses on the needs of citizens. It provides a detailed and accurate understanding of each citizen’s location, 

their demographics, lifestyles and behaviours. There are 146 Mosaic person types that aggregate into 69 household 

types and 15 groups. The classification is identical regardless of whether it is assigned to a person, a household address 

or a postcode to create one integrated and consistent classification that is easy to use. The classification is updated 
twice a year and can therefore show the changing face of neighbourhoods over time.  

The insights generated by Mosaic are different to those just looking at geography alone. For example in October 2020, 

the analysis based on Mosaic classification identified household types that had high rates of COVID but low testing 

uptake as follows. At the time in October 2020, the N59 Pocket pensioners had the lowest testing uptake in Salford. 

 

 

Size of circles indicates population size. Mosaic type is based on dominant type for postcode, rather than specific type 

for individual household.

 Page 41



32 
 

Co-Production in the Salford Locality Plan  

In March 2021, The Greater Manchester Independent Inequalities Commission reported on ‘Good Lives for All in 

Greater Manchester’. There is huge alignment with the commitment and priority given by the Health and Wellbeing 

Board to co-production for new and innovative solutions in the Locality Plan. The Locality Plan states that: “The value of 

co-production is recognised where power and decision-making are shared equally between decision-makers and 

citizens (including children and young people).  The four particular areas for co-production, each of which is a 
fundamental determinant of health and wellbeing, are: 

 child poverty 

 climate change 

 loneliness and social isolation 

 mental wellbeing and suicide prevention 

This work is being led by Unlimited Potential, on behalf of the Salford Health and Wellbeing Board. In August 2021 a Co-
production Lead, hosted by local social enterprise Unlimited Potential, was appointed to take this work forward.  

The locality plan priorities are inter-connected and the co-production approach therefore tackles the themes together. 

It was agreed to reframe the priorities in a way that would promote and support asset-based solutions to emerge. Our 

future prosperity and mental wellbeing depend on the physical and social environment. The concept of ‘community 

wealth building’ would help keep more money and wealth in the local economy, and also afford local people more 

control over and hope for their futures. 

 

Our future prosperity  

We believe in showing compassion in our country, and yet increasing numbers of children are 
locked in poverty. We believe it is only fair that all children have good life chances. 
 
The future prosperity of our society depends on our ability to foster the health and wellbeing of 
the next generation. When a society invests wisely in children and families, the next generation 
will succeed and pay that investment back through a lifetime of productivity and responsible 
citizenship. 
 
When we create and replicate high quality programmes for young children, we can solve 
problems in early childhood development and provide significant long-term improvements for 
children. 
 

 

Everyone deserves a healthy environment  

Many of us have had our value of green spaces and open water strengthened during the COVID-
19 situation. We have also benefitted from cleaner air with less pollution, with less rampant 
carbon dioxide building up like a blanket that traps heat around the world. 
 
Everyone deserves a healthy environment and the opportunity to live free from environmental 
threats. We need to make sure that everyone can live in healthy communities.  
 
To protect the people and places we love, we need to be prepared and see how powerful we can 
be together to manage our environment responsibly. By taking practical steps to tackle problems 
facing our environment today in new ways, we are acting in the best interest of future 
generations. 
 

 
Page 42



33 
 

Making time for each other  

During the COVID-19 situation, many of us have had our value of connection with others 
strengthened. More people have been looking out for each other.  
 
We know that there are many ways to connect people in our communities, whether this is in 
person, through technology or in familiar places such as local shops or public spaces.  
 
We can just be alongside people. If someone is struggling, we can ask them to help us. We can be 
curious and enjoy mixing with people who don’t look like us (in all sorts of ways). Importantly, we 
can remember to have fun! 
 

 

Looking out for each other  

When we take action for everyone’s mental health and wellbeing, we contribute to our collective 
prosperity – both now and in the future. 
 
We can improve mental health and wellbeing by trying new ideas and using our ingenuity to solve 
problems. We can put things in place that will support us all to feel better together, while 
dropping the language that puts people off. 
 
People and purpose are the most vital things to help us through tough times. 
 
In particular, we can create ways of our being alongside people when they are facing the greatest 
stresses in their lives, such as financial problems, relationship break-up or chronic pain and illness. 
 

 

Mental Health and wellbeing: Our shared priority 

Mental health was agreed as a cross- sector priority for all the partnerships in Salford. This needed to shift focus from 

illness and services to wellbeing and health promotion. Through discussions with the Partnership Boards, it was 

proposed that the key themes would be reflected in their individual action plans, encouraging system focus and a 

shared approach to improved mental health and wellbeing. 

Partners committed to the following actions, including a mental health and wellbeing champion in each partnership:  

• Promote 5 Ways to Wellbeing within their organisations  

• Promote Connect 5: Connect 5 is a mental health promotion training programme that is designed to increase 

the confidence and skills of front-line staff about mental health and wellbeing, free training is available via the 

link   

• Mental Health First Aid, Mind in Salford now offer Mental Health First Aid England training for individuals, 

businesses and organisations in Salford.  Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) is an evidence-based internationally 

recognised training, backed by the Royal Society for Public Health, which teaches people how to spot the signs 

and symptoms of mental ill health and to provide initial help and support – just like physical first aiders do for 

people with injuries or physical ill health. 

• Supporting staff with financial wellbeing and focusing on workplace wellbeing and being a mindful employer 

• Promote the Shining a Light on Suicide work  

• Support staff/clients  who may be experiencing domestic abuse via the 16 days of action website  

• Support staff/clients who may be experiencing loneliness   

 

Page 43

https://issuu.com/neweconomicsfoundation/docs/five_ways_to_well-being?viewMode=presentation
https://www.togmind.org/connect-5
https://www.mindinsalford.org.uk/training/mental-health-first-aid-salford/
https://shiningalightonsuicide.org.uk/
https://16daysofaction.co.uk/
https://www.mind.org.uk/information-support/tips-for-everyday-living/loneliness/tips-to-manage-loneliness/


34 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 44



35 
 

What it means for you 

Mental health help is available  

It’s normal to feel stressed, anxious and even depressed in times of change and the pandemic has been challenging. 
Visit https://hub.gmhsc.org.uk/mental-health/in-your-area/salford/ for support in Salford or 
www.partnersinsalford.org/emotionalhealthservices. 

Eating healthily and being more physically active does help and Salford has over 60 parks and green spaces to explore. 
Salford Community Leisure has gyms, swimming pools and exercise classes. You can find details of parks at 
www.salford.gov.uk/parks and activities by visiting https://salfordcommunityleisure.co.uk. 

Meeting friends and family and spending time doing things you enjoy are also great mood boosters but if you need 
more help call Greater Manchester Mental Health on 0800 953 0285 for free at any time or visit 
https://www.gmmh.nhs.uk/supportbylocationsalford . By July 2021, over 29,000 people had called the 24/7 helpline so 
don’t delay if you need this help. 

For support with bereavement call the Greater Manchester Bereavement service on 0161 983 0902 during office hours 
or visit https://greater-manchester-bereavement-service.org.uk/. 

Kooth is an online, free service, offering emotional and mental health support for children and young people aged 11 to 
24. It is available up to 10pm every day. Visit www.kooth.com to find out more. 

 
Help to quit smoking is available 

Podcasts, emails, a WhatsApp group and online meetings – it’s all there to help you stop smoking and stay stopped for 
good.  

Smoking damages your lungs and weakens your immune system making it harder for you to fight infections. If you get 
COVID-19 you’re more at risk of complications. 

The good news is that from the moment you quit smoking the body starts to heal itself which will help you fight off 
illnesses. 

Salford City Council’s health improvement team will tailor a plan with you to help you succeed. You can get individual 
support online or by phone as well free Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) patches, gum, mouth spray or nasal spray.  
Visit www.salford.gov.uk/stopsmoking email healthimprovement@salford.gov.uk or call them  on 0800 952 1000. 

 
Catch up on immunisations 

Routine vaccinations for babies, pre-school children and adults are continuing as normal while vaccinations usually 
given in school are being rescheduled. Immunisation is one of the best ways to protect your child from harmful and 
potentially life-threatening illnesses and is routinely offered to children at eight weeks, 12 weeks, 16 weeks, one year 
old and three years and four months.  
 
If you have missed any of the routine vaccinations especially to keep yourself safe this winter, then please do book your 
flu, COVID and other vaccinations as soon as possible. If you think your child has missed any vaccinations, please 
contact your GP for advice.  

It's important to go to your appointments unless you, your child or someone you live with has symptoms of 
coronavirus. If you do have symptoms you should self -isolate and book a test to confirm whether you have the virus or 
not. 

Page 45

https://hub.gmhsc.org.uk/mental-health/in-your-area/salford/
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/emotionalhealthservices
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parks
https://salfordcommunityleisure.co.uk/
https://www.gmmh.nhs.uk/supportbylocationsalford
https://greater-manchester-bereavement-service.org.uk/
http://www.kooth.com/
http://www.salford.gov.uk/stopsmoking
mailto:healthimprovement@salford.gov.uk


36 
 

Stay well in autumn 
Coughs, colds, chest and lung infections (known as respiratory infections) fell last year as people stayed home but we 
have seen them rise as the restrictions were eased. Unlike COVID, many of these can persist even after the sanitiser, so 
you will need to wash your hands with soap and water frequently and regularly. Help stop the spread by covering your 
mouth if you cough or sneeze, and binning used tissues straight away. Stay at home if you are unwell.  

Babies and young children are more at risk from these infections so i t’s best to avoid friends or relatives with coughs 
and colds until they are better. The British Lung Foundation has useful advice on looking after your child at home and 
the danger signs to watch out for. You can find out more on www.blf.org.uk/support-for-you/signs-of-breathing-
problems-in-children 

Keep your lungs healthy by cutting down or stopping smoking and never smoke around children or babies. There’s 
plenty of support to help you quit at www.salford.gov.uk/stopsmoking. As we head towards winter, don’t let flu knock 
you back. It’s highly infectious and can leave you poorly for up to a month. Complications such as bronchitis and 
pneumonia can put you in hospital and can even kill.  

GPs are offering the free flu vaccinations from September onwards to people aged over 50, under 50 years with serious 
health conditions, pregnant women and children aged two and three. Primary school children will be offered the nasal 
spray vaccine at school so parents should watch out for the consent form. The vacci ne is safe and effective and does 
not give you flu.  

Keep warm in winter 
Don't suffer in the cold - follow these tips to keep warm and make sure you're claiming all the help that you're entitled 
to. Improve energy efficiency in the home • Salford City Council  

• Keep curtains drawn and doors closed to block out draughts 

• Have regular hot drinks and at least one hot meal a day 

• Wear several layers of warm clothes (instead of just one chunky layer)  

• Reduce your energy bills now – make sure you are on the best tariff for your needs 

• Keep as active as possible 

• Be a good neighbour. If you know someone who could be vulnerable in the bad weather, check that they are okay 

• Stay COVID secure. Open the windows frequently to ventilate the room as much as possible when you are with 

people you do not live with 

 

Stay cool in summer  

Summer heatwaves can be dangerous to vulnerable people. Older people, babies and young children, people taking 

certain prescription drugs and with underlying health conditions such as heart, lung or kidney disease or mobility 
problems can struggle to regulate their body temperature.  

Overheating can lead to heat exhaustion and onto heatstroke which can be fatal. Visit www.nhs.uk/conditions/heat-

exhaustion-heatstroke to learn what to do to help cool someone down. If you suspect heatstroke call 999 immediately. 

Please look out for vulnerable family, friends and neighbours.  

Here are some ways in which you can stay cool  

• Drink plenty of cold drinks but avoid excess alcohol  

• Take cool baths or showers or sprinkle water over your skin and clothes  

• Wear light-coloured, loose clothing; add a hat and sunscreen and take water along if you go out  

• Stay out of the sun between 11am and 3pm and avoid extreme exercise  

• Never leave anyone, particularly children or animals in a parked vehicle even with a window open  

• Cool your house by shading windows, using a fan or opening a window if the air is cooler outside  

• Don’t swim unsupervised at Salford Quays or in open water. The water is always cold  which is dangerous from cold 
water shock. 

Page 46

http://www.blf.org.uk/support-for-you/signs-of-breathing-problems-in-children
http://www.blf.org.uk/support-for-you/signs-of-breathing-problems-in-children
http://www.salford.gov.uk/stopsmoking
https://www.salford.gov.uk/housing/home-maintenance-and-improvements/improve-energy-efficiency-in-the-home/
http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/heat-exhaustion-heatstroke
http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/heat-exhaustion-heatstroke


37 
 

Worried about a child? 
The Royal College of Paediatrics have produced advice for parents during the coronavirus if you are worried about their 
health. The British Lung Foundation also outline the danger signs and Breathing problems to look out for in children. 

If you're worried about an urgent medical concern, you can call 111 to speak to a fully trained adviser. In emergency 
situations, the young person must attend the nearest 24 hour A&E unit or call 999.  

If you are worried about the welfare or safety of a child, it is very important that you act straight away. Salford City 
Council and partners have a multi-agency hub called the Bridge Partnership that screens all contacts concerning the 
welfare or safety of a child to children's services.  

The Bridge can be contacted by telephone on 0161 603 4500, alternatively you can complete an online referral form. 

If you are worried about a young person in emotional distress and think they need urgent help but are not sure which 
service is best placed to help, you can also get advice from: Salford CAMHS – 0161 518 5400 (Mon – Fri, 9.00am – 
5.00pm).  

 
Scams - stop, think and say nothing   

Stop, think and say nothing if you’re contacted unexpectedly by someone asking for your personal or financial details. It 

could be a scammer phoning, texting or emailing to trick you into confirming personal information or giving your 

banking details so they can steal your money or your identity.  

Salford City Council’s trading standards team received over 70 reports of phishing scams with fraudsters claiming to be 

from PayPal, eBay, Amazon, banks, Royal Mail, mobile phone companies, TV licensing, internet companies and local and 
central government.  

If you have any doubts hang up or don’t reply and contact the organisation which claims to have contacted you through 

their official phone number or website. Avoid using details given to you by the person contacting you as  these could be 
fake. Legitimate organisations will welcome you checking.  

Scammers selling items will pressurise you into acting quickly and not telling family or friends about your ‘transaction’ 

in case they spot the scam. Don’t let anyone rush you. Please report any scam to Action Fraud via 

www.actionfraud.police.uk or calling 0300 123 2040 Monday to Friday 8am to 8pm Friends against Scams has 

information and a quick course on how to protect yourself and family and friends. Please visit 
www.friendsagainstscams.org.uk 

 
  

Page 47

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/2020-04/covid19_advice_for_parents_when_child_unwell_or_injured_poster.pdf
https://www.blf.org.uk/support-for-you/signs-of-breathing-problems-in-children/breathing-problems-to-look-out-for
http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/
http://www.friendsagainstscams.org.uk/


38 
 

Sexual health  

Sexual health and wellbeing are really important issues that can affect your health and quality of life, both in the short 

and long term. Shine is the Sexual and Reproductive Health Service for Salford residents. In addition to SHINE’s services, 

a digital sexually transmitted infections (STI) screening service was set up during the COVID pandemic to keep both 

service users and SHINE’s staff safe. 

Here is what you can do to support your own sexual health and wellbeing: 

 Increase your knowledgeable and awareness of your sexual health needs and those of your partner so you can 
have an enjoyable sex life 

 If you are sexually active and you or your partner could get pregnant always use contraception. There are many 
different types so you can find a method that suits your lifestyle and is effective. 
https://www.contraceptionchoices.org/ 

 Condoms can be a very good option, when used properly they can prevent many STI’s and prevent pregnancy  
 If your contraception fails you can obtain emergency hormonal contraception (EHC) from SHINE and many 

pharmacies across Salford, phone ahead to ensure the pharmacy can supply EHC before making your journey 

 If you have sexual health symptoms contact the SHINE service and get tested for STI’s so they can be treated 
quickly to prevent any long-term consequences http://www.boltonft.nhs.uk/services/sexual-health/clinics-and-
services/salford-clinics/ 

 If you request an STI testing kit, please use and return it  
 

Support for people living with HIV 

Routine PrEP provision started in 2020-21 both nationally and locally. Prior to this it was only available to those on the 

PrEP trial.  

Note. PrEP stands for pre-exposure prophylaxis, it is a HIV prevention method in which people who don’t have HIV 
take HIV medicine daily to reduce their risk of getting HIV if they are exposed to the virus.  

 If you are living with HIV and would like some confidential support outside of your treatment provision contact 
the George House Trust https://ght.org.uk 

 If you feel you are at a high risk of getting HIV contact SHINE to discuss whether taking PrEP is appropriate for 
you. PrEP is very effective at preventing HIV transmission when used correctly. 

 If you are living with HIV and are pregnant or have recently given birth you can contact the George House Trust 
https://ght.org.uk for information about the formula milk scheme. This project provides formula milk for the 
first year of the baby’s life to prevent HIV infection from the mother to her baby when breastfeeding. 

 
For more information about the GM PASH partnership see https://gmpash.org.uk 
If you are from the LGBT community see https://lgbt.foundation  
If you are from the BAME community see https://thebha.org.uk  

 

  

Page 48

https://www.contraceptionchoices.org/
http://www.boltonft.nhs.uk/services/sexual-health/clinics-and-services/salford-clinics/
http://www.boltonft.nhs.uk/services/sexual-health/clinics-and-services/salford-clinics/
https://ght.org.uk/
https://ght.org.uk/
https://gmpash.org.uk/
https://lgbt.foundation/
https://thebha.org.uk/


39 
 

What will you pledge to do?  

As we head into 2022, you may want to revisit some of the Locality Plan pledges that will help you with your 
own commitment to your health and wellbeing. Some examples of pledges you may take up are as follows: 

    I will drink less and use the online resources available to help me www.nhs.uk/ oneyou/for-

your-body/drink-less. 

    I will keep learning and take/sign up for a course on............................ 

    I will use the Active 10 app to incorporate 10 minute bursts of brisk walking into my daily life 

www.nhs.uk/oneyou/active10/home 

    I will shift from ‘Couch to 5k’ and download the app to help me 
www.nhs.uk/oneyou/apps/#days-off 

    I will know my numbers and go and get my blood pressure checked www.bloodpressureuk.org 

    I will go for my flu jab/ COVID jab/ childhood immunisations when called to protect myself and my family. 

    I will stop smoking using the NHS smokefree app for 4 weeks, meaning I am 5 times more likely 
to quit for good with this expert support www.nhs.uk/smokefree 

    I will go for my cancer screening appointment when I’m invited so that I am 'Clear on Cancer' 
www.nhs.uk/be-clear-on-cancer 

    As a family we will make healthy home cooked meals for less using apps that are available to 
help us www.nhs.uk/change4life/recipes www.nhs.uk/Tools/Pages/easy-meals.aspx 

    I will take control of my day to day stress and anxiety using simple techniques using the Thrive 

app www.thrive.uk.com 

    I will take up a free health check to help me look after my health and lifestyle and reduce my 

COVID risk www.salford.gov.uk/health-improvement-service 

    I will take up the invite for the NHS Health Check so that early signs of developing heart 

disease, stroke, diabetes and other chronic conditions can be spotted 
www.healthcheck.nhs.uk 

    I will use ‘Better off in Salford’ to find local services, advice and support in Salford for benefits 

and money matters www.salford.gov.uk/betteroff and I will join my local credit union. 

    As an organisation, we will work towards achieving the Workplace Wellbeing Charter 

www.wellbeingcharter.org.uk 

    As a school we will introduce the Daily Mile www.thedailymile.co.uk 

    I will replace short car journeys with walking or cycling at least once a week. 

Page 49

http://www.nhs.uk/%20oneyou/for-your-body/drink-less
http://www.nhs.uk/%20oneyou/for-your-body/drink-less
http://www.nhs.uk/oneyou/active10/home
http://www.nhs.uk/oneyou/apps/#days-off
http://www.bloodpressureuk.org/
http://www.nhs.uk/smokefree
http://www.nhs.uk/be-clear-on-cancer
http://www.nhs.uk/change4life/recipes
http://www.nhs.uk/Tools/Pages/easy-meals.aspx
http://www.thrive.uk.com/
http://www.salford.gov.uk/health-improvement-service
https://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/
http://www.salford.gov.uk/betteroff
https://www.wellbeingcharter.org.uk/
https://thedailymile.co.uk/


40 
 

    I will make use of the top tips for ‘Stay Well’ www.nhs.uk/staywell and ‘One 
You’ campaigns promoted during the year www.nhs.uk/oneyou 

    I will make use of the top tips for recycling, housing and health as promoted 
on the council website www.salford.gov.uk and 

www.salford.gov.uk/spiritofsalford  

    I will explore volunteering opportunities to contribute to my local 

community https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/want-volunteer 

    I will aim to only use emergency services such as A&E and ambulances 

when absolutely necessary. 

    I will make better use of local green space and parks and gardens to help 
improve my overall wellbeing. 

    I will look after myself as I get older, by incorporating exercise into my week 

to keep me strong and making sure I stay connected to my community. 
 

Page 50

https://www.nhs.uk/live-well/healthy-body/keep-warm-keep-well/
http://www.nhs.uk/oneyou
https://www.salford.gov.uk/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/spiritofsalford
https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/want-volunteer


 

 1 

 
 

Item no.  

 
Salford Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Title of report Making Salford a Living Wage City 

Date 16 November, 2021 

Contact 
Officer 

Chris Dabbs (Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce) 

 

1.  Executive Summary 

 

Why is this report being 
brought to the Board? - 
Relevance of this report to 
the priorities of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment or 
integrated working 

In the Salford Locality Plan 2020-2025, the partners on 
the Health and Wellbeing Board state: 

• “We will enhance the role of Salford’s ‘anchor 
institutions’ that could significantly affect health and 
well-being in the city.” 

• “We will pursue further opportunities for good work 
(including opportunities for those further away from 
the job market), fair remuneration and the real 
Living Wage.” 

• “Salford … aims to become a Living Wage health 
and wellbeing system, including all Health and 
Wellbeing Board members being accredited Living 
Wage employers by 2021.” 

• “For our workforce, we will: maintain our status as 
England’s first Living Wage City with plans to double 
the number of living wage employers by 2022.” 

• For Places, Communities and Neighbourhoods, one 
indicator is: progress towards Living Wage health 
and wellbeing economy. 

Health and Wellbeing Board’s 
duties or responsibilities in 
this area 

• Improve health and well-being across the city and 
remove health inequalities. 

• Social Justice and tackling inequality - everyone 
should get a fair chance to succeed in Salford. 

• Prevention and early intervention throughout life - 
we will stop problems occurring in the first place 
wherever we can. (Board terms of reference). 

Key questions for the Health 
and Wellbeing Board to 
address - what action is 
needed from the Board and 
its members? 

Actions recommended: 
 
1. To note the new UK Living Wage rate announced 

on 15 November, 2021, for implementation within 
six months. 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6d



 

 2 

2. To note the progress by the Salford Living Wage 
City Action Group towards making Salford a Living 
Wage City, with 68 accredited Living Wage 
employers based in Salford (compared to 38 in 
November 2019) and 2,010 people lifted above the 
real Living Wage as a result. 

 
3. To note that, although 11 out of 12 (91.7%) of 

Salford Health and Wellbeing Board members are 
accredited Living Wage Employers, the Board has 
not met its longstanding aim of Salford becoming a 
real Living Wage health and well-being system by 
2021. 

 

4. To request the Northern Care Alliance NHS 
Foundation Trust to take action to become an 
accredited Living Wage employer at the earliest 
possible opportunity. 

 

5. To welcome and encourage the further spread of 
GP practices becoming accredited Living Wage 
employers. 

 

6. To support the continuing efforts by Salford City 
Council and other partners to bring all workers in 
social care in Salford onto at least the real Living 
Wage. 

 

7. To request the forthcoming Greater Manchester 
Integrated Care Board to become an accredited 
Living Wage employer, and to promote the real 
Living Wage with every employer in the health and 
social care system in Greater Manchester. 

 

8. To request the Salford Social Value Alliance to 
continue to monitor progress with the real Living 
Wage in Salford, and report to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board on progress in autumn 2022. 

What requirement is there for 
internal or external 
communication around this 
issue? 

Publish the Health and Wellbeing Board’s progress on 
the real Living Wage and publicise the actions it has 
agreed. 

  

Page 52



 

 3 

2. Introduction  

 
2.1 Fair Society, Healthy Lives 
 
Fair Society, Healthy Lives (The Marmot Review, 2010) recognises that: 
1. Reducing health inequalities is a matter of fairness and social justice. 
2. There is a social gradient in health – the lower a person’s social position, the 

worse his or her health. Action should focus on reducing the gradient in health. 
3. Health inequalities result from social inequalities. Action on health inequalities 

requires action across all the social determinants of health. 
4. To reduce the steepness of the social gradient in health, actions must be 

universal, but with a scale and intensity that is proportionate to the level of 
disadvantage. 

5. Action taken to reduce health inequalities will benefit society in many ways. It will 
have economic benefits in reducing losses from illness associated with health 
inequalities. 

6. Reducing health inequalities will require action on six policy objectives, including: 
to ensure a healthy standard of living for all. As a priority, this requires a 
minimum income for healthy living for people of all ages. 

 
2.2 Economic inequality 
 
Poverty and inequality in Greater Manchester1 2 
 
The inequalities exposed by the COVID-19 situation are nothing new. The transition 
from industrial past to a knowledge-based economy has not reached everyone and 
has left a legacy of inequalities. 
 
The Greater Manchester Poverty Monitor shows that, in Greater Manchester: 

• 620,000 people are living in poverty 

• 200,000 children live in households with an income below the poverty line 

• 157,000 households are experiencing fuel poverty 

• around 250,000 people are claiming help towards housing costs 

• 20% of all jobs in Greater Manchester are paid less than the real Living Wage 
 
Greater Manchester’s employment rate is consistently below that for England, and 
the unemployment rate higher. Some 24% of Greater Manchester adults of working 
age are economically inactive, well above the level for England as a whole (21%). 

 
Low income levels underpin high levels of child poverty (26%) in Greater 
Manchester, which are well above the national rate of 18%. Child poverty is 
increasing across Greater Manchester, but faster in some areas (particularly Bolton 
and Oldham) than others. Analysis by Greater Manchester Poverty Action suggests 
that areas with the highest Black, Asian and minority ethnic populations in the city-
region also have the highest levels of child poverty: 15 out of the 20 wards with the 

 
1 Greater Manchester Poverty Action (October 2020), Greater Manchester Poverty Monitor 2020 - 
https://www.gmpovertyaction.org/poverty-monitor-2020/ [due to be updated in spring 2022] 
2 Greater Manchester Independent Inequalities Commission (March 2021), The Next Level: Good 
Lives for All in Greater Manchester https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-
do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/ 

Page 53

https://www.gmpovertyaction.org/poverty-monitor-2020/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/


 

 4 

largest ‘BAME’ populations in Greater Manchester had a child poverty rate (after 
housing costs) of over 50% in 2018-2019. 
 
On all labour market indicators, there is considerable variation across Greater 
Manchester. For people from Black, Asian and minority ethnic groups, employment 
rates are over 10% below the overall working-age employment rate, 6% below the 
national average, and with significant variance by locality. Only half of disabled 
working-age residents are in employment, lagging the England average and 25% 
below the employment rate for the city-region’s working-age population as a whole. 
 
The skills deficit evident at all levels of the Greater Manchester population is a key 
driver of the enduring productivity gap between the city-region and England as a 
whole, and reinforces the predominance of lower value, low pay employment in the 
city-region compared to southern England and Greater Manchester’s international 
comparators. 
 
The Greater Manchester Poverty Monitor shows large inequalities within Greater 
Manchester and within individual boroughs, both in respect of levels of poverty and 
outcomes. In Salford, some key findings include: 

• 11.2% of residents experience fuel poverty 

• the ward with highest rate of child poverty is Ordsall (59.3%) 

• the ward with the lowest rate of child poverty is Worsley and Boothstown (13.4%) 

• the area with the highest rate of food insecurity is Higher Broughton (30.22%) 

• the area with the lowest rate of food insecurity is Salford Central and University 
(11.78%) 

• average hourly pay is £13.03 (8th in Greater Manchester) 
 
Pay in Greater Manchester3 4 
 
Overall, pay levels and salary growth in Greater Manchester lag behind UK 
averages. Workers in the city-region earn on average around 10% per hour less than 
the UK median. Median gross weekly pay for all workers (full and part-time) living in 
Greater Manchester in 2020 was £456, £26 per week less than the England average. 
Salary growth between 2013 and 2018 in Greater Manchester was 7.8%, compared 
to 9.4% across the country. The real value of the annual median wage in Greater 
Manchester in 2017 was around £1,500 less than in 2008. 
 
19% of jobs in Greater Manchester were paid less than two-thirds of the national 
median wage in 2017; a higher proportion than in better performing UK urban areas 
(London, 10%, and Bristol city region, 16%), but lower than in most comparator city 
regions (20-24%). The proportion of jobs offering low pay5 fell in eight Greater 
Manchester districts between 2012 and 2017 and did not increase in the other two. 
The proportion of local jobs that were low paid in 2017 was highest in Rochdale (26% 
in 2017) and lowest in Manchester and Salford (14%). 
 

 
3 Greater Manchester Independent Prosperity Review (February 2019): 43. 
4 Greater Manchester Independent Inequalities Commission (March 2021), The Next Level: Good 
Lives for All in Greater Manchester https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-
do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/  
5 Low pay is defined as: hourly earnings (excluding overtime and other payments) less than the 
median hourly wage for all employees. 

Page 54

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/


 

 5 

The majority of Greater Manchester’s low earners work in just three sectors: retail 
and wholesale (27%); hospitality, tourism and sport (21%); and health and social 
care (15%). 
 
Women’s pay in Greater Manchester was £125 per week lower than men’s pay in 
2020, and the majority of Greater Manchester workers paid less than the real Living 
Wage were women (58% in 2017). This is, however, a lower proportion than the UK 
average and comparator UK city-regions. Locally, the highest levels of low pay for 
women were in Bolton (38% earning less than the real Living Wage), compared to 
17% for Manchester and 16% for Salford. 
 
The proportion of single parents in Greater Manchester who were low paid in 2016-
2018 (33%), however, was higher than the UK average and those of comparator city-
regions. It was also higher than among adults in other types of Greater Manchester 
household. 
 
A higher proportion of black workers (33%) in the city region was low-paid than their 
Asian (27%) and white (21%) counterparts in 2016-2018, although the number of 
people in the latter group (215,000) far exceeded those for Asian (20,000) and black 
(15,000) workers. 
 
The figure below shows ethnic inequalities in low pay for employees in Greater 
Manchester (hourly pay in grey, weekly pay in orange). Although there has been 
some reduction in low pay over the period charted (largely down to the introduction of 
the so-called ‘national living wage’), this has benefited Black and Black British 
workers less than others. 
 

 
 
31% of Greater Manchester workers with qualifications at GCSE level or below were 
low paid, similar to the national average (30%). The proportion of graduates in 
Greater Manchester who were low-paid in the same period (10%), however, was 
marginally higher than in most comparator city-regions. 
 
Research by the Resolution Foundation on progression out of low pay found that 
one-third of people who were on low wages in 2012 were still on low wages four 
years later. This proportion varied from city-region to city-region with Greater 

Page 55



 

 6 

Manchester in the middle of the pack. Those who were low-paid in London in 2012 
were least likely to still be in low pay in 2016 (29%), while the risk of still being low 
paid was highest in Newcastle (43%). 
 
2.3 Living Wage 
 
The real Living Wage is an hourly rate set independently and updated annually. It is 
calculated by the Resolution Foundation and overseen by the Living Wage 
Commission, based on the best available evidence about living standards in London 
and the UK. This is based on detailed research of what households need in order to 
have a minimum acceptable standard of living. 
 
The real Living Wage is set annually by the Living Wage Foundation and is £9.50 per 
hour in the UK (outside London) from 9 November, 2020. The new real Living Wage 
rate will be announced on 15 November, 2021, for implementation within six months. 
Employers choose to pay the real Living Wage on a voluntary basis and can become 
accredited by the Living Wage Foundation. 
 
Distinct from the real Living Wage, the ‘national living wage’ for all workers aged over 
25 was introduced by the Government in April 2016; this was subsequently applied to 
those aged 23 and over. This is effectively a premium on top of the National 
Minimum Wage rate, while the National Minimum Wage for those under the age of 23 
still applies. 
 
The current rates from 1 April, 2021, and the forthcoming rates from 1 April, 2022, 
are: 

from 23 and over 21-22 18-20 under 18 apprentice 

April 2022 £9.50 £9.18 £6.83 £4.81 £4.81 

April 2021 £8.91 £8.36 £6.56 £4.62 £4.30 

 
The Low Pay Commission has a remit to review annually the ‘national living wage’, 
as well as the minimum wage, and to recommend any increases. The rates change 
on 1 April every year. The Government had asked the Commission to ensure that the 
‘national living wage’ reaches 60% of median earnings by 2020; it replaced this with 
a target for the ‘national living wage’ to reach two-thirds of median earnings by 2024. 
 
For the purposes of this report, the ‘real Living Wage’ means the Living Wage as 
calculated for and overseen by the Living Wage Foundation. 
 
2.4 Real Living Wage in Salford 
 
Intelligence Analysis at Salford City Council (June 2019)6 found that: 
 
It is estimated that the number of jobs in Salford offering below the real Living Wage 
is growing by approximately 2,000 per year, but this is not wholly representative of 
residential employment as many residents are employed within other local authority 
areas (such as Trafford Park). For the UK as a whole, it is estimated that of nearly 
300,000 additional employees every year, 265,000 (88%) are earning below the real 
Living Wage (a growth in this proportion of +0.6% per year). The local model 
suggests that, while the number of Salford residents paid below the real Living Wage 

 
6 This analysis is currently subject to review and updating by Salford City Council. 

Page 56



 

 7 

growing at a similar rate to the national average (+0.6% per year), there is also a 
similar increase in Salford residents earning above the real Living Wage. However, 
because there are a lot more earning above the real Living Wage in total, this results 
in the overall proportion of people earning below the real Living Wage increasing: 
 

Proportion by year and average yearly growth 

 Salford U.K. 

2015 2018 growth 2015 2018 growth 

below real 
Living Wage 

39.2% 40.9% 
+0.59% 
(+3.3k) 

28.9% 30.7% 
+0.60% 
(+265k) 

above real 
Living Wage 

60.8% 59.1% 
-0.59% 
(+3.0k) 

71.1% 69.3% 
-0.60% 
(+33k) 

 
This suggests an average yearly growth in employment paid above the real Living 
Wage of around 3,000 people per year. The majority of this can be linked to a similar 
rate of population growth in and around Ordsall. This is largely based on young 
professionals (many having recently attended a local university) renting newly 
developed apartments. Some are initially employed on rates below the real Living 
Wage, while others are self-employed, often operating in the ‘gig economy’. In both 
cases, the rate of wage growth is fairly quick, and there is a high degree of turnover. 
Population growth in Ordsall is so large that it is also home to the largest increase in 
numbers of people paid below the real Living Wage, with one-third estimated to be 
living in Ordsall and Langworthy, despite the overall proportion reducing: 
 

Proportion earning below the real Living Wage by year and average yearly growth 
by neighbourhood 

 2015 2019 growth 

Claremont and Weaste 34.1% 35.7% +1.5% (+0.2k) 

East Salford 45.0% 48.3% +2.5% (+0.0k) 

Eccles, Barton and Winton 39.6% 41.7% +1.8% (+0.4k) 

Irlam and Cadishead 37.2% 39.9% +2.4% (+0.3k) 

Little Hulton and Walkden 43.2% 44.8% +1.3% (+0.6k) 

Ordsall and Langworthy 45.3% 44.9% -0.3% (+1.3k) 

Swinton and Pendlebury 37.4% 40.3% +2.6% (+0.2k) 

Worsley and Boothstown 22.6% 22.1% -0.8% (+0.1k) 

 
Elsewhere in the city, where population growth is not at the same level, there are 
several factors at play which can affect estimated proportions paid below the real 
Living Wage. In East Salford, there has been an above average increase in the 
proportion, although this is linked to a highly transient population and decreasing 
numbers of working age and/or economically active residents, so numbers have 
remained similar. In Worsley and Boothstown, the proportion has decreased despite 
a small increase in numbers, largely because there has been a bigger increase in 
those earning above the real Living Wage. Elsewhere, particularly in the outer 
suburbs, numbers and proportions are increasing. There is the same theme 
throughout the country, with much of the increase linked to a decline in suburban 
unemployment, and older workers taking low paid jobs in order to supplement, or 
bridge gaps to, pension payments. 
 
  

Page 57



 

 8 

2.5 Salford’s commitments to the real Living Wage 
 
Within Greater Manchester, Salford has taken the lead on the real Living Wage, with 
the then City Mayor signalling in 2013 the intention for Salford to end poverty pay and 
to become a real Living Wage City. This commitment has been continued by the 
current City Mayor, who previously chaired Salford’s Living Wage Partners Group. 
 
Salford is already committed to “continue to champion for the wider adoption of the 
[real] Living Wage … as a minimum, with the ambition for Salford to become a ‘Living 
Wage City’.” A stated key measure of success is to “increase the number of Salford 
employers paying the Living Wage (as determined by the Living Wage Foundation).”7 
 
Salford was the first place in England to get formal 
recognition for its ambition to become a Living Wage City. 
The Living Wage Foundation recognised Salford under its 
Living Wage Places scheme on 11 November, 2019. The 
aim is to work together to tackle low pay within localities by 
expanding Living Wage employer accreditation. 
 
In March 2021, Salford launched The Salford Way, a range of initiatives aimed at 
creating a fairer, greener and healthier Salford. The plan is to build a more inclusive 
and green local economy and a fairer city where everyone can reach their full 
potential and live prosperous and fulfilling lives. 
 
“Our vision of economic inclusivity, alongside our plans to tackle health inequalities 
are vital as we seek to address the imbalance across the city as a result of the 
impact of the pandemic. This is a combined vision for the city’s economic horizon, 
one that residents, businesses and communities across the city can be a part of as 
we work to create a better, fairer Salford.”8 
 
The Salford Way includes: the ‘Great Eight’ key priorities for the city; an inclusive and 
green economic strategy; a new tackling poverty strategy; and Salford’s new 
crowdfunding initiative. 
 
Economically, “Our vision is for a fairer and more inclusive local economy that 
delivers greater social and environmental justice, where wealth is shared more widely 
across all our communities. An economy where every Salford citizen has the 
opportunity to participate and feel empowered to make a difference through their 
communities, workplaces and local democratic institutions.”9 
 
The inclusive and green economic strategy reflects a community wealth-building 
approach. This seeks “to improve employment opportunities and workers’ rights by, 
for example, promoting recruitment from low-income areas, championing inclusive 
employment practices, building progression routes for employees and committing 
employers to paying the real Living Wage.” 
 
Building on Salford being the first place in England to get formal recognition for its 
ambition to become a Living Wage City, the strategy highlights the work of the 

 
7 Salford Employment and Skills Strategy 2017–20 
8 https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/ 
9 Closing the Divide: a strategy to build an inclusive and green Salford economy for all 2021-2024 
(March 2021) https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/ 

Page 58

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/


 

 9 

Salford Living Wage City Action Group and the commitment to more than double the 
number of accredited Living Wage employers based in Salford by 2022, particularly 
in typically low-paying sectors such as social care, retail, and hospitality. “This is a 
real opportunity to encourage collaboration between key local institutions and 
encourage more employers to join the growing national Living Wage movement.” 
 
Salford is also seeking to actively tackle poverty. “Our vision is to make Salford a 
fairer and more inclusive place where everyone can reach their full potential and live 
prosperous and fulfilling lives free from poverty and inequality.” Its strategy to 
prevent and reduce poverty aims to focus action by focusing collective action 
across three themes:10 
1. Preventing people from falling into poverty. 
2. Providing targeted support for people struggling in poverty. 
3. Campaigning for long-term change in Government policies and practices. 
 
Under the first theme of preventing people from falling into poverty, Salford has 
stated that: “We’re working hard to create more decent jobs with decent pay, as part 
of Salford’s ambition to become the UK’s first Living Wage City. A task force, made 
up of public, private and voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations 
has already helped to increase the number of businesses paying the [real] Living 
Wage in Salford (55 in February 2021) and this work will be significantly scaled up 
over the next two years to meet our ambition to increase this to more than 70 by 
2022. This would help double the number of people lifted out of poverty pay from 
10,000 to 20,000.”11 
 
As part of its 10% Better campaign, the Salford Social Value Alliance12 has 
committed to: 

• 10% more employers paying the real Living Wage 

• using as an indicator of the proportion of employee jobs paid less than the real 
Living Wage in Salford 

 
In line with the 10% Better campaign, it has previously been agreed that that the two 
key performance indicators for the real Living Wage in Salford should be: 

• the number of Salford residents paid at least the real Living Wage [against an aim 
of increasing this by 10% between 2017 to 2021 – an extra 1,570 people] 

• the number of accredited employers based in Salford paying the real Living Wage 
[against an aim of increasing this by 10% between 2017 to 2021 – an extra 2 
employers accredited] 

 
The Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter13 is a voluntary membership 
and assessment scheme, led by Greater Manchester Combined Authority, which has 
been created to help deliver good jobs with opportunities for people to progress and 
develop, along with a thriving and productive economy. Membership of the Charter 
requires employers to demonstrate a commitment to excellent practice in seven key 
employment characteristics. One characteristic is that Charter members are expected 
to provide evidence to demonstrate payment of the real Living Wage to employees 

 
10 No One Left Behind: a strategy to prevent and reduce poverty in Salford 2021-2024 (2021) 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/ 
11 No One Left Behind: a strategy to prevent and reduce poverty in Salford 2021-2024 (2021) 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/ 
12 https://www.salfordsocialvalue.org.uk/ 
13 https://www.gmgoodemploymentcharter.co.uk/ 

Page 59

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salfordsocialvalue.org.uk/
https://www.gmgoodemploymentcharter.co.uk/


 

 10 

and details of plans to pay their contractors a real Living Wage (as set out by the 
Living Wage Foundation). 
 

3. Key issues for the Board to consider 

 
3.1 Health Inequalities and the real Living Wage 
 
Health Inequalities and the Living Wage (health equity briefing 6, UCL Institute of 
Health Equity, September 2014), commissioned by Public Health England, found that 
the evidence shows that insufficient income is associated with worse outcomes 
across virtually all domains of health, including long-term health and life expectancy. 
It is associated with a greater risk of limiting illness and poor mental health including 
maternal depression. Children who live in poverty are more likely to be born early 
and small, suffer chronic diseases such as asthma, and face greater risk of mortality 
in early and later life. 
 
The negative health effects of living on a low income can be caused by material 
factors (the inability to afford the items necessary for a healthy life) and/or 
psychosocial factors (such as ‘status anxiety’). 
 
The Institute for Health Equity concluded that adopting the real Living Wage is shown 
to improve psychological health and well-being among employees and increase life 
expectancy. It is associated with significant improvements in self-rated health, 
depression, alcohol consumption, activity-limiting illnesses and a fall in mortality. 
 
As major employers, statutory agencies can lead by example by paying at least the 
real Living Wage to all directly employed staff and, where appropriate, to all sub-
contracted staff. As major purchasers, statutory agencies can also help to implement 
the real Living Wage through procurement from their suppliers, including through 
innovative application of the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012. 
 
3.2 Living Wage: Stating the Case 
 
Research by the Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce to review the available 
evidence surrounding the business case for paying the real Living Wage (The Living 
Wage: Stating the Case, November 2016) found that: 

• Across all the available evidence, three main areas in which paying higher wages 
can have a significant beneficial impact are evident: productivity; ease of 
recruitment; and staff retention. 

• The evidence is almost entirely supportive of the idea that paying higher wages 
can improve production and quality, although the long-term nature of the benefits 
make them harder to quantify against the immediate cost increase. Wider 
beneficial economic spill-over effects have been observed following pay increases 
in select cases. 

• Organisations in traditionally low-paid, low-skilled and high staff-turnover sectors 
such as retail, health and social care, bars and restaurants, etc., will likely face 
relatively larger wage bill increases and have less scope to absorb such increases 
than sectors such as IT, banking, finance and construction. 

• Sector also determines how prices are likely absorbed. Some sectors have scope 
to increase prices, whilst others may have to remove inefficiencies or reduce the 
number of staff or hours worked. 

Page 60



 

 11 

• Paying the real Living Wage means an increased wage bill for those organisations 
with low-paid workers, and due to the vast differences between business models 
the real Living Wage may not be practical for many organisations, so no blanket 
statement of endorsement can be made. 

• If, after careful consideration, a particular organisation has adequate scope for 
paying higher wages, the evidence overwhelmingly suggests it is beneficial to do 
so. 

 
3.3 Locality Plan for Salford 
 
The Salford Locality Plan 2020-2025 has two core outcomes: 
1. People will live longer and those years will be lived in good health (Increased 

healthy life expectancy for all). 
2. The gap in life expectancy between the most and least deprived communities in 

the city will be reduced (inequalities index). 
 
Among the more detailed outcomes are: 

• Starting Well: I am a young person who will achieve their potential in life, with 
great learning and employment opportunities. 

• Starting Well: I am as good a parent as I can be. 

• Living Well: I lead a happy, fulfilling and purposeful life, and I am able to manage 
the challenges that life gives me. 

• Ageing Well: I am an older person who is looking after my health and delaying the 
need for care. 

• Strong and resilient communities: I have opportunities to contribute, and benefit 
from, a strong economy with quality local jobs. 

 
At all stages of the life course, therefore, local people would benefit from the 
application of the real Living Wage. 
 
Building on work by the Salford Health and Wellbeing Board since 2015, the Salford 
Locality Plan 2020-2025 states that: 

• “The city’s approach to economic development and growing a more inclusive 
economy is designed to ensure that more of our residents can benefit from the 
economic, social and cultural opportunities in the city.” 

• “We will enhance the role of Salford’s ‘anchor institutions’ that could significantly 
affect health and well-being in the city.” 

• “We will pursue further opportunities for good work (including opportunities for 
those further away from the job market), fair remuneration and the real Living 
Wage.” 

• “Salford … aims to become a Living Wage health and wellbeing system, including 
all Health and Wellbeing Board members being accredited Living Wage employers 
by 2021.” 

• “For our workforce, we will: maintain our status as England’s first Living Wage City 
with plans to double the number of living wage employers by 2022.” 

• For Places, Communities and Neighbourhoods, one indicator is: progress towards 
Living Wage health and wellbeing economy. 

 
3.4 Salford Health and Wellbeing Board position – 2020 
 
At its meeting on 10 November, 2020, Salford Health and Wellbeing Board agreed: 

Page 61



 

 12 

1. To note the new UK Living Wage rate announced on 9 November, 2020, for 
implementation within six months. 

2. To welcome Salford becoming the first place in England to get formal recognition 
for its ambition to become a Living Wage City, under the Living Wage Places 
scheme run by the Living Wage Foundation, and to support the continuing work 
of the Salford Living Wage City Action Group. 

3. To recommit to progressing towards Salford becoming a Living Wage health and 
well-being economy, with all Health and Wellbeing Board members being 
accredited Living Wage employers by 2021. 

4. To welcome the commitment of the Northern Care Alliance NHS Group to 
become a Living Wage employer, and to support it to do so. 

5. To support continuing action being taken by Salford Clinical Commissioning 
Group to spread the real Living Wage in primary care. 

6. To note and welcome the pay rise for all social care workers in Salford from 1 
October, 2020, and to support further efforts by Salford City Council and Salford 
Clinical Commissioning Group to bring all social care workers in Salford onto the 
real Living Wage. 

7. To encourage all Salford Health and Wellbeing Board members to become 
Members of the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter. 

8. To join with the Northern Care Alliance NHS Group to lobby for the national 
negotiated NHS pay deal to be linked to the real Living Wage, for a sustainable 
solution for all NHS workers. 

9. To consider seeking legal advice as to the potential for making it a mandatory 
requirement on contractors, as part of a public procurement process or public 
contract, to pay their employees the real Living Wage, once the transition period 
for the UK to leave the European Union single market and customs union ends 
on 1 January, 2021. 

10. To request the Salford Social Value Alliance to continue to monitor progress with 
the real Living Wage in Salford, and report to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
progress in autumn 2021. 

 
3.5 Progress on implementing the real Living Wage  
 
Salford becoming a real Living Wage health and well-being system by 2021. 
 
There have been 12 member organisations of Salford Health and Wellbeing Board 
since 1 April, 2017 (as well as the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership). The current positions reported for each of them are: 
 

Accredited Living 
Wage Employers 
 

 

• Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce 

• Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service (as part of 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority) 

• Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust 

• Greater Manchester Police 

• Healthwatch Salford 

• Salford City Council 

• Salford Clinical Commissioning Group 

• Salford CVS 

• Salford Primary Care Together 

• University of Salford 

 

Page 62



 

 13 

Furthermore, while Salford Strategic Housing Partnership itself is not an employer, 
most social housing providers are accredited Living Wage Employers, including: 
ForHousing (and ForWorks (Liberty R&M)); Great Places Housing Group; Irwell 
Valley Homes; Onward Homes; Salix Homes (which was the first accredited Living 
Wage Employer in Greater Manchester, in June 2012); Windsor Albion Co-operative; 
and Your Housing Group. In October 2021, Greater Manchester Housing Providers 
launched a new anti-poverty pledge14 including, on fair employment: 

• paying the real Living Wage 

• seeking accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation as Living Wage Employers 

• signing up to the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter 
 
This means that, effectively, 11 out of 12 (91.7%) of Salford Health and Wellbeing 
Board members are accredited Living Wage Employers. This compares to only four 
(44.4%) of the Board’s then nine member organisations being accredited Living 
Wage Employers in 2016. 
 
The current position of the other Board member is: 
 

Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust 

On 27 January, 2020, the Board of the then Northern Care Alliance NHS Group 
adopted an ‘anchor mission’ for social value creation. It also acknowledged the 
aspiration to become a Living Wage employer; with the Chief People Officer 
confirming that Greater Manchester human resources leads had agreed to develop 
a stepped change process with regards to implementation. 
 
In October 2020, the Northern Care Alliance NHS Group stated that: 
 
“The NCA Board has committed to become a Living Wage employer. However, we 
are tied into national terms and conditions through ‘Agenda for Change’. The 
current nationally negotiated pay scale has taken some staff below the hourly 
Living Wage rate. 
 
A new pay deal is anticipated for 2021, and we are lobbying for the national 
negotiated pay to be linked to the Living Wage for a sustainable solution not just for 
NCA staff, but all NHS workers. And we ask partners to join this lobby. 
 
If this is not resolved by the 2021 pay deal, … our Chief of People is working with 
colleagues behind the scenes to create a GM solution to avoid pitching one 
organisation against another. 
 
We are also committed to bringing services back into the NHS which had 
previously been tendered out to ensure that all of the NHS terms and conditions 
including sick pay, annual leave, occupational health and wellbeing services can 
be accessed. We have recently brought security staff back in house across our 
north east sector sites.” 
 
On 28 October, 2021, the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust provided 
this statement: 
 

 
14 https://gmhousing.co.uk/2021/10/08/poverty-pledges/ 

Page 63

https://gmhousing.co.uk/2021/10/08/poverty-pledges/


 

 14 

"The Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust came into being on the 1st 
October, 2021, having been operating in shadow form since 1st April, 2017. During 
this time, we have been developing our Anchor Mission, our approach to social 
value which is the use of our power in a purposeful and intentional way to ensure a 
sustainable planet, support the reduction of poverty through employment and job 
creation and anchoring wealth to place through our procurement process. 
 
This includes a commitment to the real Living Wage and, as we have previously 
discussed, we see the sustainable resolution of this through amending the 
nationally negotiated NHS pay settlement. Whilst it is disappointing that the current 
settlement moves our lowest paid staff closer to this aim, it again falls short, and 
we will continue to lobby so that the next NHS pay deal from 1 April, 2022, is in line 
with the new real Living Wage. In the meantime, we continue to work with other 
NHS providers across Greater Manchester to see if there is a local solution. Our 
NCA Board remain committed to our aspiration to become a Living Wage employer 
and will be updated on the Greater Manchester discussions at its December board. 
 
On a positive note we have brought more services ‘in-house’ (e.g. security) to 
enable more people15 to receive the benefit of NHS terms and conditions. It is our 
intention to retain services in-house wherever possible.” 

 
This means that Salford has failed to fulfil its aim (first agreed by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in November 2016) of becoming a real Living Wage health and well-
being system by 2021. 
 
The Board may wish to note the position with regard to other larger provider 
organisations in Salford: 

• Aspire for intelligent Care and Support - accredited Living Wage Employer. 

• Oaklands Hospital (owned by Ramsay Health Care UK) - not accredited. 

• Salford Community Leisure - accredited Living Wage Employer. 

• Six Degrees social enterprise - accredited Living Wage Employer. 
 
Only one in ten GP practices had previously paid all their staff the real Living Wage. 
In order to access additional funding, they need to meet the Salford Standard, a set 
of requirements for commissioning additional services from GPs. Salford Clinical 
Commissioning Group said to GPs that, from April 2019, demonstrating action 
towards paying the real Living Wage will be one of those requirements. Six GP 
practices – Chapel Group Medical Centre in Irlam, Cherry Medical Practice in Little 
Hulton, Gill Medical Centre in Walkden, Ordsall Health Surgery in Ordsall, Poplars 
Medical Centre in Swinton, and St. Andrew’s Medical Centre in Eccles – are now 
accredited Living Wage employers (compared to five in November 2020). 
 
There are also at least 13 smaller providers operating in Salford that are accredited 
Living Wage Employers: 42nd Street; Gaddum Centre; Inspiring Communities 
Together; Langworthy Cornerstone Association; LGBT Foundation; Mind in Salford; 
Mustard Tree; Pathways CIC; Salford Women's Aid/SIDASS; Start Inspiring Minds; 
Survivors Manchester; Unlimited Potential; and Visit From The Stork. This is an 
increase on ten in November 2020. 

 
15 “Quantification of increased numbers are difficult given the changes to the NCA workforce numbers 
due to North Manchester joining MFT [Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust] and the increase 
in community services for Oldham and Bury.” (Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust, 
28/10/21). 

Page 64



 

 15 

 
To support the spread of the real Living Wage in health care, the Living Wage 
Foundation launched in July 2021 Implementing the Living Wage: a toolkit for NHS 
organisations.16 
 
Social care17 
 
There remains a challenge around pay within social care. 
 
Adult social care is an important and growing sector, offering the opportunity for 
innovation and integration of services to improve the quality of jobs and pay while 
also improving the service for residents. There are 64,000 frontline care workers in 
Greater Manchester. 80% (around 50,000) are employed in the independent sector 
across these specialisms: residential and nursing homes, with nearly 18,000 beds 
that operate at 90-100% of capacity; domiciliary care, supporting over 26,000 
residents; and learning disability services for over 7,400 people. 
 
Employment in Greater Manchester grew in line with the UK average up to the 
recession (growing at 2.1% per year between 1998 and 2008), but it has seen much 
slower growth post-recession (0.2% in Greater Manchester compared to 1.0% in the 
UK between 2010 and 2016). 
 
Adult social care is a low-pay sector. Evidence suggests that this problem may be 
more acute in Greater Manchester than elsewhere. Greater Manchester has low 
commissioning rates as compared to both the rest of north-west England and to 
England as a whole, particularly in relation to domiciliary care (at £450 per week for 
residential/nursing care and £164 per week for domiciliary care). It is not clear why 
Greater Manchester pays less than other localities, but it is likely to include the urban 
setting, lower property costs, and the large buying power of commissioners. 
 
Other terms and conditions in the sector are equally challenging. Only 50% of care 
workers hold a Level 2 qualification. There are also high turnover rates, especially for 
new starters and those new into adult social care (usually around one third of new 
starters). 
 
In March 2020, the City Mayor announced a pay rise to £9.00 per hour from 1 
October, 2020, for all care workers in Salford as the City Council and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group continue to work towards care workers receiving the real 
Living Wage. In addition, both organisations have been seeking to identify resources 
in order to pay the real Living Wage of £9.30 per hour to those care workers on the 
supported tenancies learning disability contracts from 1 October, 2020, as a step 
towards bringing all care workers onto the real Living Wage. 
 
It should be noted that there are two social care providers based in Salford that are 
accredited Living Wage employers: Aspire for intelligent Care and Support; and 
Paula Integrated Care. 
 

 
16 Living Wage Foundation (2021) Implementing the Living Wage: a toolkit for NHS organisations 
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/implementing-living-wage-toolkit-nhs-organisations 
17 Greater Manchester Independent Prosperity Review (February 2019): 44. 

Page 65

https://www.livingwage.org.uk/implementing-living-wage-toolkit-nhs-organisations


 

 16 

To support the spread of the real Living Wage in social care, the Living Wage 
Foundation launched in September 2021 The Living Wage in Social Care: a toolkit 
for social care providers and local authorities commissioning care.18 
 
Promoting the business case for the real Living Wage to all employers in Salford. 
 
Salford was the first place in England to get formal 
recognition for its ambition to become a Living Wage City. 
The Living Wage Foundation recognised Salford under its 
Living Wage Places scheme on 11 November, 2019. The 
aim is to work together to tackle low pay within localities by 
expanding Living Wage employer accreditation. 
 
This work is being driven by the Salford Living Wage City Action Group, which is 
currently chaired by Councillor Barbara Bentham. The Action Group includes both 
accredited Living Wage employers and community champions from local businesses 
and the public, and voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) sectors.  
 
For its work, Salford Living Wage City Action Group won the 
Places Champion Award in the national Living Wage 
Champion Awards 2021 at the ceremony hosted by the 
Living Wage Foundation on 16 June, 2021. 
 
The Action Group aimed to work in 2020-2022 with 30 
anchor employers, as well as the health and social care, 
retail and hospitality sectors, to encourage more employers 
to pay the real Living Wage. 
 
Despite the economic impact of the COVID-19 situation, the Salford Living Wage City 
Action Group has continued its work towards making Salford a Living Wage City. Its 
performance to date against its core targets is: 
 

Core target  11/2019 
baseline 

11/2020 11/2021 11/2022 

1. increase the number of 
accredited Living Wage 
employers whose main base is 
within the City of Salford 

target 
38 

48 62  76  

actual 49 68 - 

2. lift above the real Living Wage 
people employed or contracted 
by accredited Living Wage 
employers whose main base is 
within the City of Salford 

target 

1,744 

2,000 2,500  2,800 

actual 1,816 2,010 - 

3. increase the proportion of jobs 
in Salford employed by 
accredited Living Wage 
employers whose main base is 
within the City of Salford 

target 
7.0% 

(9,433) 

10.0% 
(13,200)  

13.0% 
(15,840)  

15.0% 
(19,800)  

actual 12,146 13,095 - 

 

 
18 Living Wage Foundation (2021) The Living Wage in Social Care: a toolkit for social care providers 
and local authorities commissioning care https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-wage-social-care-toolkit 

Page 66

https://www.livingwage.org.uk/champion-awards
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/champion-awards
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-wage-social-care-toolkit


 

 17 

In addition to the agencies mentioned in the section on health and well-being above, 
there is a range of other organisations based in Salford from all sectors that are 
accredited Living Wage Employers. 
 
Within the voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) sector and the 
faith sector, they are: Agnes Hopkins Community Centre; Broughton Trust; Caritas 
Diocese of Salford; Centre for Specialist Educational Assistance (known as Binoh); 
Church Action on Poverty; Citizens Advice Salford; Coffee4Craig; Lifecentre Salford; 
Medaille Trust; Salford Credit Union; Salford Foodbank; Salford Unemployed and 
Community Resource Centre; Society Inc; University of Salford Students' Union. 
 
It should also be highlighted that Salford CVS won the Funding and Charity 
Champion Award in the national Living Wage Champion Awards 2021 at the 
ceremony hosted by the Living Wage Foundation on 16 June, 2021. 
 
Within the private sector, they are: Anchor Removals19; Best Roofers; Carbon 
Creative; Cycle Waggle (trading as Manchester Bike Hire); dock10; Excalon; 
Fletcher’s Engineering; Freedom Fibre; J Freeley; Geoffrey Miller Solicitors; Kenny 
Waste Management; Mettler-Toledo Safeline; My First Five Years; No Drama; North 
West Skills Academy; OHS; PlaceFirst; Psn Painting Services; Schofield and Sons; 
TalkTalk; That’s TV; UDP; Vita Skills; Zymurgorium. 
 
There are at least another 22 accredited Living Wage employers with branches or 
operations in Salford. These include large businesses (such as including Barclays 
Bank, Lloyds Bank, Nationwide Building Society and Santander UK), Greater 
Manchester Chamber of Commerce, and several Greater Manchester-level statutory 
bodies. 
 
The Salford Living Wage City Action Group has prioritised a focus on large and iconic 
employers whose main base is in Salford that are not yet accredited Living Wage 
employers. Each will be individually engaged about the real Living Wage and the 
business case for being a Living Wage employer. 
 
Real Living Wage within procurement of services, works and goods. 
 
For statutory bodies, the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 applies when a 
statutory body procures the provision of services, or the provision of services 
together with the purchase of hire of goods or carrying out of works, that is subject to 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. The Act requires the procuring body to 
consider, at the pre-procurement stage, how procurement could improve the social, 
economic and environmental well-being of the relevant area, and also to consider 
how in conducting the process of procurement, the commissioner might act with a 
view to securing that improvement. 
 
Both Salford City Council and Salford Clinical Commissioning Group have been 
seeking to incorporate the real Living Wage into commissioning, under the Public 
Services (Social Value Act) 2012. They agreed to explore the development of 
collective guidance and shared experience of incorporating the real Living Wage 
within procurement of services, works and goods, including the use of contractual 

 
19 Anchor Removals won the Against All Odds Industry Award in the national Living Wage Champion 
Awards 2021 at the ceremony hosted by the Living Wage Foundation on 16 June, 2021. 

Page 67

https://www.livingwage.org.uk/champion-awards
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/champion-awards
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/champion-awards


 

 18 

levers. This was to include a review of legal advice, in the light of experience of 
statutory bodies elsewhere in England. 
 
For statutory bodies, the European Commission had confirmed that any mandatory 
requirement on contractors, as part of a public procurement process or public 
contract, to pay their employees a Living Wage set at a rate higher than any 
minimum wage set by or in accordance with law (that is, the UK’s National Minimum 
Wage or ‘national living wage’) was unlikely to be compatible with EU law. This 
situation may well have changed after the transition period for the United Kingdom to 
leave the European Union single market and customs union ended on 1 January, 
2021. 
 
In September 2021, inspired by the practice of other local authorities in England 
(and, more recently, the Scottish Government), the Salford Living Wage City Action 
Group agreed to put together a full case to Salford City Council to make paying the 
real Living Wage a mandatory requirement in all contracts with suppliers. 
 
In the meantime, it remains possible to encourage contractors to pay the real Living 
Wage, where relevant to the delivery of a contract. It could, for example, be stated as 
a standard. Information and advice from the Living Wage Foundation about effective 
practice in incorporating the real Living Wage within procurement of services, works 
and goods is available. This includes exemplar practice from the commercial sector. 
 
Promotion of the real Living Wage through the Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership. 
 
There was initial high level scoping at Greater Manchester level, with more to be 
done with NHS employers and other associated bodies. From mid-2018, 
consideration has been given to how to make progress on the real Living Wage in 
health and social care across Greater Manchester, from the perspective of health 
and social care integration. A meeting on 25 June, 2019, explored this further, with 
potential priorities identified as prioritising NHS trusts, and engaging with the 
Strategic Workforce Board at Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership. 
 
Presentations on the work in Salford to spread the real Living Wage in health and 
social care were given to the Greater Manchester Workforce Engagement Forum 
(NHS employers and trade unions) on 29 April, 2021, and to the NHS North West 
Social Partnership Forum (NHS employers and trade unions) on 1 July, 2021. 
 
Liaison with regard to the real Living Wage has been raised for the planning of the 
new Greater Manchester Integrated Care System coming into force in April 2022. 
Work has been ongoing since July 2021 as part of the health and social care action 
strand for Making Greater Manchester the first Living Wage city-region. This has 
brought together public sector organisations in health and social care alongside trade 
unions and the Living Wage Foundation to discuss and look at taking this forward, 
with advice provided from the experience in Salford. Consideration is also being 
given within the planning of the new integrated care system to the potential of 
adopting the real Living Wage. 
 
  

Page 68



 

 19 

4.  Recommendations for action 

 
In line with the Locality Plan for Salford, the Health and Wellbeing Board agrees: 

 
1. To note the new UK Living Wage rate announced on 15 November, 2021, for 

implementation within six months. 
 
2. To note the progress by the Salford Living Wage City Action Group towards 

making Salford a Living Wage City, with 68 accredited Living Wage employers 
based in Salford (compared to 38 in November 2019) and 2,010 people lifted 
above the real Living Wage as a result. 

 
3. To note that, although 11 out of 12 (91.7%) of Salford Health and Wellbeing Board 

members are accredited Living Wage Employers, the Board has not met its 
longstanding aim of Salford becoming a real Living Wage health and well-being 
system by 2021. 

 

4. To request the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust to take action to 
become an accredited Living Wage employer at the earliest possible opportunity. 

 

5. To welcome and encourage the further spread of GP practices becoming 
accredited Living Wage employers. 

 

6. To support the continuing efforts by Salford City Council and other partners to 
bring all workers in social care in Salford onto at least the real Living Wage. 

 

7. To request the forthcoming Greater Manchester Integrated Care Board to become 
an accredited Living Wage employer, and to promote the real Living Wage with 
every employer in the health and social care system in Greater Manchester. 

 

8. To request the Salford Social Value Alliance to continue to monitor progress with 
the real Living Wage in Salford, and report to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
progress in autumn 2022. 

 
Note: For clarity, within these recommendations, the ‘real Living Wage’ means the 
Living Wage as calculated for and overseen by the Living Wage Foundation. 
 
  

Page 69



 

 20 

5.  Contextual information 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

• Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (2017), The Living Wage: core 
principles and global perspectives – 
http://www.accaglobal.com/content/dam/ACCA_Global/Technical/sus/pi-living-
wage-core-principles.pdf 

• Bloomer E. (2014), Health Inequalities and the Living Wage (health equity 
evidence review 6, UCL Institute of Health Equity) - 
www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/health-inequalities-and-the-living-wage 

• Bloomer E. (2014), Health Inequalities and the Living Wage (health equity briefing 
6, UCL Institute of Health Equity) - www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/health-
inequalities-and-the-living-wage 

• Centre for Research in Social Policy (2014), Uprating the out-of-London Living 
Wage (Loughborough University) - 
www.lboro.ac.uk/research/crsp/mis/thelivingwage/ 

• Coulson A. and Bonner J. (2014), Living Wage Employers: evidence of UK 
business cases (University of Strathclyde) - 
http://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/BAR_LivingWageReport%20croppe
d%2021%2001.pdf 

• D’Arcy C. and Finch D. (2016), Calculating a Living Wage for London and the rest 
of the UK (Resolution Foundation) - http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/wp-
content/uploads/2016/10/Living-wage-calculations.pdf 

• Davies A. (2016), The Living Wage: Stating the Case (Greater Manchester 
Chamber of Commerce) – 
http://www.gmchamber.co.uk/system/attachments/1538/original.pdf 

• Durcan D. (2015), Local action on health inequalities. Promoting good quality jobs 
to reduce health inequalities (Public Health England, UCL Institute of Health 
Equity) – http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/local-action-on-
health-inequalities-promoting-good-quality-jobs-to-reduce-health-inequalities-  

• Heery E., Nash D. and Hann D. (2017), The Living Wage Employer Experience 
(Cardiff Business School) – 
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/722429/The-Living-Wage-
Employer-Experience-Report.pdf  

• Hunter P. (2018), The local Living Wage dividend: an analysis of the impact of the 
Living Wage on ten city regions (Smith Institute) – http://www.smith-
institute.org.uk/book/the-local-living-wage-dividend/ 

• Hunter P. (2021), The Living Wage Dividend: maximising the local economic 
benefits of paying a living wage (Smith Institute) https://www.smith-
institute.org.uk/book/the-living-wage-dividend-maximising-the-local-economic-
benefits-of-paying-a-living-wage/ 

• Johns M., Raikes L., Hunter J. (2019), Decent Work. Harnessing the power of 
local government (IPPR) - https://www.ippr.org/research/publications/decent-work 

• Lawton K. and Pennycook M. (2013), Beyond the Bottom Line: The Challenges 
and Opportunities of a Living Wage (IPPR and Resolution Foundation) - 
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/wp-
content/uploads/2014/08/Beyond_the_Bottom_Line_-_FINAL.pdf  

• Living Wage Commission (2016), Closing the Gap. A Living Wage that means 
families don’t go short - http://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/Closing the 
gap - final report of the Living Wage Commission.pdf 

Page 70

http://www.accaglobal.com/content/dam/ACCA_Global/Technical/sus/pi-living-wage-core-principles.pdf
http://www.accaglobal.com/content/dam/ACCA_Global/Technical/sus/pi-living-wage-core-principles.pdf
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/health-inequalities-and-the-living-wage
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/health-inequalities-and-the-living-wage
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/health-inequalities-and-the-living-wage
http://www.lboro.ac.uk/research/crsp/mis/thelivingwage/
http://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/BAR_LivingWageReport%20cropped%2021%2001.pdf
http://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/BAR_LivingWageReport%20cropped%2021%2001.pdf
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/Living-wage-calculations.pdf
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/Living-wage-calculations.pdf
http://www.gmchamber.co.uk/system/attachments/1538/original.pdf
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/local-action-on-health-inequalities-promoting-good-quality-jobs-to-reduce-health-inequalities-
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/local-action-on-health-inequalities-promoting-good-quality-jobs-to-reduce-health-inequalities-
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/722429/The-Living-Wage-Employer-Experience-Report.pdf
https://www.cardiff.ac.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/722429/The-Living-Wage-Employer-Experience-Report.pdf
http://www.smith-institute.org.uk/book/the-local-living-wage-dividend/
http://www.smith-institute.org.uk/book/the-local-living-wage-dividend/
https://www.smith-institute.org.uk/book/the-living-wage-dividend-maximising-the-local-economic-benefits-of-paying-a-living-wage/
https://www.smith-institute.org.uk/book/the-living-wage-dividend-maximising-the-local-economic-benefits-of-paying-a-living-wage/
https://www.smith-institute.org.uk/book/the-living-wage-dividend-maximising-the-local-economic-benefits-of-paying-a-living-wage/
https://www.ippr.org/research/publications/decent-work
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/08/Beyond_the_Bottom_Line_-_FINAL.pdf
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/08/Beyond_the_Bottom_Line_-_FINAL.pdf
http://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/Closing%20the%20gap%20-%20final%20report%20of%20the%20Living%20Wage%20Commission.pdf
http://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/Closing%20the%20gap%20-%20final%20report%20of%20the%20Living%20Wage%20Commission.pdf


 

 21 

• Living Wage Foundation (2018), Life on Low Pay - 
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/LWF%20Life%20on%20Low%20P
ay%20Report_0.pdf 

• Living Wage Foundation (2019), Living Wage Places Toolkit - 
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/LWP%20Low%20Pay%20Local%
20Actions%20Report.pdf 

• Living Wage Foundation (2021) Implementing the Living Wage: a toolkit for NHS 
organisations https://www.livingwage.org.uk/implementing-living-wage-toolkit-nhs-
organisations 

• Living Wage Foundation (2021) The Living Wage in Social Care: a toolkit for social 
care providers and local authorities commissioning care 
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-wage-social-care-toolkit 

• London Economics (2009), An independent study of the business benefits of 
implementing a Living Wage policy in London – 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor/economic_unit/docs/living-wage-benefits-report.pdf  

• Marmot M. et al. (2010), Fair Society, Healthy Lives: strategic review of health 
inequalities in England post-2010 - www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-
society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review 

• Robinson B. et al. (2015), The Living Wage: an economic impact assessment 
(KPMG) - 
https://www.kpmg.com/UK/en/IssuesAndInsights/ArticlesPublications/Documents/
PDF/Issues%20and%20Insights/kpmg-living-wage-report-2015.pdf 

• Werner A. (2021), Living Wage Implementation in Adult Social Care: challenges, 
solutions and benefits (Middlesex University) https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-
wage-social-care-toolkit 

 
 
STRATEGIC DRIVERS AND EVIDENCE OF NEED: 

• Greater Manchester Combined Authority (2019) – Greater Manchester Good 
Employment Charter – https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-
do/economy/greater-manchester-good-employment-charter/ 

• Greater Manchester Combined Authority / HM Government (2019) – Greater 
Manchester Local Industrial Strategy – https://www.greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchesters-local-industrial-strategy/ 

• Greater Manchester Independent Inequalities Commission (March 2021), The 
Next Level: Good Lives for All in Greater Manchester 
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-
inequalities-commission/ 

• Greater Manchester Independent Prosperity Review (February 2019) – 
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-
manchester-independent-prosperity-review/ 

• Greater Manchester Independent Prosperity Review – One Year On (September 
2020) – https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-
manchester-independent-prosperity-review/ 

• Greater Manchester Poverty Action (October 2020), Greater Manchester Poverty 
Monitor 2020 – https://www.gmpovertyaction.org/poverty-monitor-2020/ 

• Lupton R., Rafferty A. and Hughes C. (2016), Inclusive Growth: opportunities and 
challenges for Greater Manchester, Manchester: Inclusive Growth Analysis Unit, 
University of Manchester 

Page 71

https://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/LWF%20Life%20on%20Low%20Pay%20Report_0.pdf
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/LWF%20Life%20on%20Low%20Pay%20Report_0.pdf
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/LWP%20Low%20Pay%20Local%20Actions%20Report.pdf
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/sites/default/files/LWP%20Low%20Pay%20Local%20Actions%20Report.pdf
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/implementing-living-wage-toolkit-nhs-organisations
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/implementing-living-wage-toolkit-nhs-organisations
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-wage-social-care-toolkit
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor/economic_unit/docs/living-wage-benefits-report.pdf
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review
http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review
https://www.kpmg.com/UK/en/IssuesAndInsights/ArticlesPublications/Documents/PDF/Issues%20and%20Insights/kpmg-living-wage-report-2015.pdf
https://www.kpmg.com/UK/en/IssuesAndInsights/ArticlesPublications/Documents/PDF/Issues%20and%20Insights/kpmg-living-wage-report-2015.pdf
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-wage-social-care-toolkit
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/living-wage-social-care-toolkit
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchester-good-employment-charter/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchester-good-employment-charter/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchesters-local-industrial-strategy/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchesters-local-industrial-strategy/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/independent-inequalities-commission/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/economy/greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/
https://www.gmpovertyaction.org/poverty-monitor-2020/
http://www.cities.manchester.ac.uk/igau/research/reports/
http://www.cities.manchester.ac.uk/igau/research/reports/


 

 22 

• Resolution Foundation (2019), Low Pay in Greater Manchester – 
https://www.resolutionfoundation.org/publications/low-pay-in-greater-manchester-
a-report-for-the-greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/ 

• Salford City Council (2021), Closing the Divide: a strategy to build an inclusive and 
green Salford economy for all 2021-2024 https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-
council/the-salford-way/ 

• Salford City Council (2021), No One Left Behind: a strategy to prevent and reduce 
poverty in Salford 2021-2024 https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-
way/ 

• Salford City Mayor's Charter for Employment Standards – 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayor-s-employment-
standards-charter/  

• Salford City Partnership (2017) – Salford Employment and Skills Strategy 2017-
2020 (2017) - 
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/documents/Employment_skills_strategy_2017-
20_web_-_final_(web_version).pdf 

• Salford City Partnership (2017) – No One Left Behind: tackling poverty in Salford –  
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/390192/no-one-left-behind-tackling-poverty-in-
salford.pdf 

• Salford Health and Wellbeing Board, Salford Locality Plan 2020-2025 (2020) – 
https://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/transformation/locality-plan 

 
 
THIS REPORT CONTENT HAS ALSO BEEN CONSIDERED BY:  

• Salford Social Value Alliance 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
There has not been a community impact assessment completed locally. 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
There are costs to employers of implementation of the Living Wage, primarily 
associated with increased wage bills, though these will vary by sector and employer. 
It does, however, lower staff turnover and absenteeism, increase productivity, 
improve organisational reputation and raise staff motivation and morale, with 
associated cost savings for employers. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Legal advice will be sought in order to consider the potential 
for making it a mandatory requirement on contractors, as part of a public 
procurement process or public contract, to pay their employees the real Living Wage, 
since the UK left the European Union single market and customs union on 1 January, 
2021. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
There are costs to employers of implementation of the Living Wage, primarily 
associated with increased wage bills, though these will vary by sector and employer. 
It does, however, lower staff turnover and absenteeism, increase productivity, 
improve organisational reputation and raise staff motivation and morale, with 
associated cost savings for employers. 

Page 72

https://www.resolutionfoundation.org/publications/low-pay-in-greater-manchester-a-report-for-the-greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/
https://www.resolutionfoundation.org/publications/low-pay-in-greater-manchester-a-report-for-the-greater-manchester-independent-prosperity-review/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayor-s-employment-standards-charter/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/city-mayor/city-mayor-s-employment-standards-charter/
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/documents/Employment_skills_strategy_2017-20_web_-_final_(web_version).pdf
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/documents/Employment_skills_strategy_2017-20_web_-_final_(web_version).pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/390192/no-one-left-behind-tackling-poverty-in-salford.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/390192/no-one-left-behind-tackling-poverty-in-salford.pdf
https://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/transformation/locality-plan


 

 23 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
There are implications in incorporating the Living Wage within procurement, 
wherever legal, including through application of the Public Services (Social Value) 
Act 2012. Legal advice has been obtained by Salford City Council on these. 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: 
Adopting the Living Wage for all employees should lower staff turnover and 
absenteeism, increase productivity, improve organisational reputation and raise staff 
motivation and morale. 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE ON THE RETURN TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS
	5 2.05pm - Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 14 September 2021 and Matters Arising.
	6b 2.15pm - Public Health Annual Report 2020/21 and Core JSSNA (Muna Abdel Aziz)
	6d 2.35pm - Making Salford a Living Wage City (Chris Dabbs)

